
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
Town Hall Council Chambers 

30 South Main Street 

Weaverville, N.C.  28787 

 REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

August 20, 2018 at 7:00pm 

Town Council Regularly Scheduled Monthly Meeting 

   

   

1. Call to Order ....................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

   

2. Approval / Adjustments to the Agenda .............................................................................................................. Mayor Root 

   

3. Approval of Minutes ...................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

 A. July 16, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting Minutes  

 B. July 24, 2018 Special-Called Meeting Minutes  

   

4. Consent Agenda  

 A. FY 2017-2018 Tax Collector’s Settlement ........................................................................................................ Finance Director 

 B. Tax Release……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… Finance Director 

 C. Budget Amendment: Re-appropriation from FY 2018-2019 Budget ................................................... Finance Director 

 D. Road Closure Ordinances: North Buncombe Homecoming Parade & Art in Autumn ................... Police Chief 

 E. Board Appointments: Planning & Zoning Board, Board of Adjustment & ABC Board .................. Mayor Root 

 F. Waterline Acceptance/Authorization for Staff Level Approval – Bulls Bay, LLC – Central 
Avenue Subdivision …...…………………………………………………………………………………………………….. 

 

Public Works Director 

 G. Re-Subdivision of Lot 55 of Reems Creek Village - Preliminary/Final Plat Approval .……..……. Planning Director 

 H. Appointment to the French Broad River Metropolitan Planning Organization & 
Transportation Advisory Committee .................................................................................................................. 

 

Mayor Root 

    

5. General Public Comments  

   

6. Town Manager's Report ................................................................................................................................................ Town Manager 

   

7. Discussion & Action Items: 

 A. Appointment of Tax Collector and Order for Collector for FY 2018-2019 ........................................ Town Manager 

 B. Waterline Extension and Allocation Request – Hawthorne at Garrison Branch .............................  Public Works Director 

 C. Water System Capital Improvement Project ................................................................................................... Town Manager 

 D. Fire Department Quarterly Report ...................................................................................................................... Fire Chief 

 E. Police Department Quarterly Report .................................................................................................................. Police Chief 

   

8 Closed Session ..................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

   

 A. N.C.G.S. §143-318.11(a)(3) To consult with an attorney employed or retained by the public 
body in order to preserve the attorney-client privilege ... 

 

    

 B. N.C.G.S §143-318.11(a)(6) To consider the qualifications, competence, performance, 
character, fitness, conditions of appointment, or conditions of initial employment of an 
individual public officer or employee or prospective public officer or employee ... 

 

    

9. Adjournment ..................................................................................................................................................................... Mayor Root 

1



 

 
Page 1 of 4  July 16, 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

      

MINUTES 

 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE                                                                       TOWN COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING 
STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA                                                                                           MONDAY, JULY 16, 2018 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for its regular monthly meeting on Monday, July 16, 2018, at 7:00 
p.m. in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council Members present were: Mayor Al Root, Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilman 
Jeffrey McKenna, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, 
Police Chief Alan Wyatt, Fire Chief Ted Williams, Town Planner James Eller, Finance Officer Tonya Dozier, Public 
Works Supervisor Rick Harper and Water Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan. 

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. Approval/Adjustments to the Agenda 

Councilman Fitzsimmons asked to delete item 4E (Proposed Amendments to Personnel Policy: Article III Pay Plan) 
from the Consent Agenda for consideration at a future meeting.  
Councilman Jackson made a motion to approve the agenda with the aforementioned revision. Councilman Nagle 
seconded and all voted in favor of the motion. 

 
3. Approval of Minutes 

Councilwoman Sherrill made the motion to approve the minutes from June 4, 2018 Special Called Meeting, June 18, 
2018 Special Called Meeting and June 18, 2018 Town Council Regular Meeting as presented. Councilman Nagle 
seconded the motion and all voted in favor on the approval of the minutes. 

 
4. Consent Agenda 

Councilwoman Sherrill moved for the approval of the consent agenda. Councilman McKenna seconded the motion 
and all voted unanimously to approve all action requested in the consent agenda. 

 
A. Monthly Tax Report – Information Only  
B. Ratify Disposal of Surplus Property – Ratified Disposal of Surplus Property 
C. Budget Amendment: Re-Appropriations from FY 2017-2018 – Approval of Budget Amendment 
D. Adoption of Pay Plan & Position Classification Plan Pursuant to Approved FY 2018-2019 Budget – Adopted 

the Pay Plan and Position Classification Plan 
 

5. General Public Comment – No Public Comments 
 

6. Special Recognitions 
Mayor Root, on behalf of Town Council, presented a plaque in special recognition to Shane Owenby of Piano 
Emporium for all his assistance and involvement in helping honor Memorial Day, Veterans Day, and Patriot Day at 
Lake Louise each year. 

2



 

 
Page 2 of 4  July 16, 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

 
7. Town Manager’s Report 

Town Manager Selena Coffey presented her Manager’s Report to Council that included bidding for the Concrete 
Repairs at the Water Treatment Plant have been completed and the Town received one bid from Carolina Specialties, 
Inc. for $52,872; Council has a workshop coming up on July 24 at 6 pm in the Town Hall; As of July 16, the former 
bus garage will be publicly listed with Cindy Ward of Weaverville Realty; Citizens Academy Graduation will be 
Thursday, July 19 at 6pm and all are invited to attend; she has not received the Greenways Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) yet, but it should be forthcoming soon; she presented a sample firearms sign that would be 
posted in our Town parks for promoting safety in our parks while balancing firearm regulations; and lastly, the 4th of 
July event was a huge success, however, with new developments in the works near Lake Louise, the Town will not be 
able to have fireworks at the current location anymore. Town Manager Coffey asked Council about signing a contract 
for fireworks next year, since it is a timely manner, or if she should wait until they make a decision on if the Town can 
find another spot to shoot them off and have fireworks next year. 
 
Mayor Root mentioned that he thought the Town made a mistake when it moved the fireworks from downtown to 
Lake Louise for financial reasons. However, the law is pretty clear on where you can and cannot have fireworks and 
we are now at a point where there is no more space available. Mayor Root said for geographical reason we can’t do it 
anymore, but it might be an opportunity to enliven downtown Weaverville in the summer or even have other things to 
do for families on July 4th.  
 
Council discussed other possible locations to hold the fireworks, directed the Town Manager to come back with some 
other suggestions as to how the Town might implement other activities for July 4th and advised not to sign the 
contract until it is determined if there is a place for them.  
 

8. Discussion and Action Items 
A. Election of Vice Mayor 

Councilman Fitzsimmons nominated Councilman Jackson as Vice-Mayor.  Councilwoman Sherrill seconded and 
all voted in favor of the selection. There were no other nominations. 

 
B. Water Treatment Plant Expansion Report & Recommendations 

Randy Hintz from Withers Ravenal discussed the four alternatives considered for the expansion of the Town of 
Weaverville’s water system in the expansion report and recommended to Council that the Intake and Water 
Treatment Expansion be the preferred option. This option expands the Water Treatment Plant capacity from 1.5 
MGD to 3.0 MGD and doesn’t require additional permitting from the state, since the allowable withdrawal for the 
Town of Weaverville is 4.0 MGD. NCDEQ has confirmed this allowable withdrawal and even provided 
documentation confirming the prior approvals.  Mr. Hintz noted that this takes care of the first part in the 
expansion report, the need for additional capacity, but the second part of the expansion will be to extend another 
waterline into town to increase water supply.  There were three alternatives developed for the waterline extension 
in the expansion report, and the chosen alternative was to extend a 12 inch line along Clarks Chapel Road until it 
gets to Ollie Weaver Road, then down the road to tie in to the existing waterline. This line will help support the 
water supply to the west of I-40, which is currently served by one 6 inch line that goes under I-40.  The total cost 
of the whole project, which includes an inflation factor of 25%, is estimated to be around $9.6 million. This 
breaks down to about $3.0 million for the waterline extension and $6.6 million for the water treatment plant 
expansion.  The expansion report is attached. 
 
Dennie Martin from WR-Martin covered the financial aspects of the project with Town Council, which consisted 
of three pieces: a revised Capital Improvements Plan, a summary of the existing Water Fund debt, and a Water 
Fund financial analysis.  With the Capital Improvements Plan being five years old, WR-Martin updated it and 
substituted a block of other projects that were proposed for the WTP, with the two projects discussed by Mr. 
Hintz. Mr. Martin and staff recommend that the project be completed in two phases and to do the distribution 
improvements as the initial application, assuming that the Town will pursue a USDA loan or potentially a grant 

3



 

 
Page 3 of 4  July 16, 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

because of terms that are more favored to this project.  The terms could be a 38 year amortization period, instead 
of a maximum of 20 years. Mr. Martin feels the distribution system improvements can be done in the first USDA 
initiative and follow with the WTP improvements over the next year.  This allows the Town to have a two year 
separation in the debt service payments, since a summary of the existing Water Fund debt shows that the Town 
still has 11 years of debt payments on the old water treatment loan. So the closer the Town can get to having this 
behind them the better off they are because the last six years would involve double payments.  The Water Fund 
financial analysis is a cash flow analysis that reflects the new audit years and projects revenues from the 
Enterprise fund over the next ten years based on the numbers from the budget this year. It also reflects the 
operating and capital expenditures calculated over the same period. The new debt shown for capital outlay 
includes payments from the USDA loans for the four projects. WR-Martin is trying to avoid three consecutive 
years of negative net income, so they don’t raise any flags in Raleigh. They are doing this by keeping the fund 
balance around 100%, but it could drop below this towards the end. Plus, they included water rate increases and 
new customers established to the revenue. Mr. Martin mentioned this is just a preliminary draft and the numbers 
could change, but it is a great starting point to deciding if we should go ahead with the project. 
 
Council discussed their concerns with the water rates increasing by 14.5% in the first 3 years, the Capital 
Improvements Plan totaling $15.77 million, and if the Ivy River would be able to keep supplying this demand for 
a long period of time. 
 
Mr. Martin mentioned that if Council doesn’t want to increase the water rates, there are other options like paying 
more from fund balance or delaying some of the other WTP projects. Also, these other distribution projects are 
the reason for the CIP being higher than expected. 
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that she really appreciates WR-Martin helping us through this USDA 
process and making it so that it is more favorable to our customer through the two phases.  
 

C. Code Amendments – Chapter 9, Nuisances 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson discussed that staff has begun work on reviewing the regulation of nuisances as 
contained in Chapter 9 of the Town’s code and would like to begin discussion with Town Council, so they can 
give some direction on potential amendments to the regulation of nuisances, including abandoned and junked 
motor vehicles.  She mentioned that the Town has in their ordinance the authority to remove these abandoned and 
junked vehicles from public streets, public property and private property with the request by the property owner 
by NCGS 160A-303. However, the ordinance doesn’t include NCGS 160A-303.2, which allows for the Town to 
remove from private property without the consent of the owner. This allows for the Town to remove under health 
and safety hazards.   
 
Council discussed if this was becoming an issue in the Town and would they like to be acting like a home owner’s 
association.  
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey mentioned that she has dealt with this before in a previous position and what they 
did was have an incentive where the Town would come remove the property. The Town has not budgeted for this 
but it is another possibility.   
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson also mentioned that the General Nuisances under Article 2 target Public Health 
Nuisances, but the Town has the ability to broaden this to more aesthetic issues. However, this does get more 
complicated to abate under the General Nuisances authority. These abatements typically require court orders, 
whereas the public health nuisances allow the Town to abate assuming they are following their own ordinances.  
 
Council directed Town Attorney to limit the General Nuisances ordinance to more a health and safety issues.  
 
 

4



 

 
Page 4 of 4  July 16, 2018  
  Town Council Regular Monthly Meeting Minutes 
 

 
D. Planning Quarterly Report 

Town Planner James Eller presented the Planning Departments Quarterly Report and noted that 33 Zoning 
Permits and 3 Sign Permits have been issued during this period.  The report is attached below.  

 
E. Finance Quarterly Report 

Finance Officer Tonya Dozier mentioned that the financial statements are currently under audit and are not 
available for review yet.  The auditor was in house on July 12, 2018 to begin work on the audit, which is August 6 
– August 10.  
 

F. Closed Session 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to enter closed session as per N.C. Gen. Stat. § 143-318.11(a)(3) to consult 
with an attorney and § 143-318.11(a)(6) to consider the qualifications, competence, performance, character, 
fitness, conditions of appointment, of conditions of employment of a public officer or employee, or to hear or 
investigate a complaint, charge or grievance .Councilwoman Sherrill seconded the motion and by a unanimous 
vote Council entered into closed session. 
 
[CLOSED SESSION] 
 
Councilman Jackson made the motion to exit closed session. Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted 
unanimously to exit closed session and re-enter open session. 
 
Upon return to Open Session, Council discussed proposed amendments to Article III Pay Plan of the Personnel 
Policy, which had been previously removed from the Consent Agenda. Holiday bonuses were discussed and 
Council directed the Town Manager to come up with alternatives that move away from longevity being the basis 
for the amount of holiday bonus provided. 
   
Town Council will consider appointments and reappointments on the Zoning Board of Adjustments at their 
August meeting.  
 

G. Adjournment 
Councilman Jackson  made the motion to adjourn; Councilman Nagle seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 9.15 p.m. 
 

__________________________________________ 
DEREK K. HUNINGHAKE, Town Clerk 

5



 

 
Page 1 of 2  July 24, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 

                  

                   MINUTES 

Town of Weaverville    Town Council Special Called Meeting 
State of North Carolina Tuesday, July 24, 2018 

The Town Council for the Town of Weaverville met for a special called meeting on Tuesday, July 24, 2018, at 6:00 p.m. 
in Council Chambers within Weaverville Town Hall at 30 South Main Street, Weaverville, North Carolina. 

Council members present were: Mayor Al Root, Vice Mayor/Councilman Doug Jackson, Councilman Jeffrey McKenna, 
Councilwoman Dottie Sherrill, Councilman Andrew Nagle and Councilman Patrick Fitzsimmons.  

Staff present was: Town Manager Selena Coffey, Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson, Town Clerk Derek Huninghake, 
Water Treatment Plant Supervisor Trent Duncan and Public Works Director Dale Pennell.  

1. Call to Order 
Mayor Root called the meeting to order at 6:02 p.m. 
 

2. Sale of Old Bus Garage 
Town Manager Selena Coffey informed Town Council that we have received an offer for the former bus garage 
for $350,000, along with a deposit of $17,500.  The bus garage is listed for $550,000. 
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that with Council proceeding under NCGS 160A-269, when the 
Town receives an offer, we advertise it and have an upset bid period. So the next steps for getting the upset bid 
period started are Town Council would propose to accept the offer, advertise the offer and then there are 10 days 
from the publication date to submit sealed qualifying bids to the Town Clerk. Once the 10 day period is up, the 
Town Clerk will open the sealed bids and advertised the new highest bid. This procedure shall be repeated until 
no further qualifying upset bids are received, at which time Council may accept the offer and sell the property to 
the highest bidder or reject all offers.  
 
Town Council had discussions about the offer being low compared to the listing price and that it had only been on 
the market for about a month. However, if they propose to accept the offer then it will get the ball rolling and 
allow the upset bid period to start, so that more qualifying bids can be submitted.  Council always has the final 
option at the end to reject or accept the offer. 
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to propose to accept the offer received with a cash price of $350,000, direct 
that a notice of said offer be published as set forth in NCGS 160A-269, and direct the town clerk to re-advertise 
any qualifying upset bids received until 10-day upset bid period elapses without any new bids being received, at 
which time Town Council will consider acceptance of the offer and sale to the highest bidder . Councilman Nagle 
seconded the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries on 5-0 vote. 
 

3. Water Treatment Plant Expansion 
Mayor Root noted that Council and staff have been reviewing the best options for expansion of the Water 
Treatment Plant for a long time and he agrees with Dennie Martin from WR-Martin, that the plant expansion is 
the most desirable approach. Mayor Root also believes a good case was made for proceeding in two phases and to 
move ahead with directing staff to pursue the USDA grant/loan application. 

6



 

 
Page 2 of 2  July 24, 2018  
  Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes 
 

Council discussed the possible interest rates on the USDA loan, if they would have to place assets as collateral 
during the loan process and if they were locked in to the USDA loan once it was submitted.  
 
Alice Briggs, Grant Manager for WR-Martin, mentioned that she would be working with the Town on putting the 
application together if they choose that option. USDA adjusts there rates every quarter and the current quarter rate 
through September 30 is 3.875%. These rates could increase after this quarter, but the rates are locked in once the 
application is received.   
 
Steven Miller, Financial Strategist for WR-Martin, mentioned that initially during the construction period the 
Town would have an interim bank loan with the assets being pledged as collateral for the bank. Once the 
construction is complete, the bank loan is paid off by USDA and the debt is converted to revenue bonds secured 
only by the anticipated revenue within the public enterprise fund.  
 
Town Manager Selena Coffey noted that this would be a USDA loan, instead of a grant since the Town wouldn’t 
qualify for the grant because of their median household income. However, a positive about the USDA loan is it 
can extend for 40 years, as opposed to a traditional bank loan that goes for only 15 or 20 years.  Also, the Town 
can pay it off early without penalties. Town Manager Coffey reminded Council that right now the USDA funds 
are available, but we don’t know going forward with the new federal budget whether the program will continue to 
be funded.  
 
Town Attorney Jennifer Jackson mentioned that once the application is submitted, Council can always decide to 
go another route without being locked in to the USDA loan.   
 
Council determined that with a critical date of October 1, 2018, they need to hurry to get the USDA application in 
before interest rates increase and to make sure that there are still funds available in the budget before the new 
federal fiscal year begins.   
 
Councilman Jackson made a motion to authorize staff, with the assistance of WR-Martin, to proceed with 
preparing a USGA grant/loan application for the line extension project following the Ollie Weaver route for 
anticipated submission by the October 1, 2018, USDA application deadline . Councilman Fitzsimmons seconded 
the motion. The motion passed by a unanimous vote of Council. Motion carries 5-0. 
 

4. Adjournment 
Councilman Nagle made the motion to adjourn; Councilman McKenna seconded and all voted to adjourn the 
Council’s meeting at 6:30 p.m. 

 
 
    ______________________________________________ 

  Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

7



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2018 

SUBJECT: Tax Collector’s Settlement – Fiscal Year 2017-2018 

PRESENTER:  Finance Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Year End Tax Report for FY 2017-2018 
Listing of Delinquent Taxpayers 
Resolution Approving the Tax Collector’s Settlement for FY 2017-2018 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

It is time for the Tax Collector, Debbie Bruce, to provide her statutorily required settlement for the 
FY 2017-2018 tax year. It should be noted that the Tax Collector’s collection percentage for FY 
2017-2018 is 99.86%.  

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Approval of the Tax Collector’s Settlement for FY 2017-2018 taxes: 

I move that Town Council approve the Resolution Approving the Tax Collector’s 
Settlement for Fiscal Year 2017-2018.  

8



AS OF 6/30/2018
Real Property: 718,048,829        
Real Property Discoveries: 4,382,100             

Total Real Property: 722,430,929        
Personal: 68,272,808           
Personal Discoveries: 25,284 

Total Personal: 68,298,092           
Public Utilities: 5,147,971             
Exemption: (9,394,737) 
Releases: (1,465,263) 
Total Tax Value 785,016,992        

Tax Levy @.38 cents per $100
Real Property: 2,745,238             
Personal Property: 259,533                
Public Utilities: 19,562 
Less Under $5 Adjustment (61) 
Total Public Utilities: 19,501 
Exemption: (35,700) 
Releases: (5,568) 
Total Levy (Total Billed) 2,983,004             

Total Current Year Collections 2,978,700             
% Collected 99.86%

Total Left to be Collected: 4,304 

Prior Years Paid 5,624 

Town of Weaverville  
YEAR END TAX  REPORT 

FY 2017-18

129



F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8

 

N
A

ME
 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

: 
2
0

1
0

 

B
A

L
L

E
W

, 
T

O
N

Y
 R

E
E

D
 

B
E

L
L

 G
R

E
G

O
R

Y
 J

A
M

E
S

 

L
O

V
E

L
A

C
E

 K
E

N
N

E
T

H
 P

 

M
A

C
E

 M
A

R
A

N
N

E
 M

 

UN
K

N
O

W
N

 O
W

N
E

R
 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

: 
2

0
1

1
 

B
A

L
L

E
W

, 
T

O
N

Y
 RE

E
D

 

B
A

R
B

E
R

, 
L

Y
D

IA
 

G
L

O
B

A
L

 C
L

A
IM

S
 S

P
E

C
IA

L
IS

T
S

 

M
C

D
O

W
E

L
L

, 
L

E
S

T
E

R
 D

A
V

ID
 

P
O

P
P

Y
S

 K
IT

C
H

E
N

 L
L

C
 

R
H

O
D

A
R

M
E

R
, 
A

L
A

N
 W

 &
 

T
H

E
 C

A
R

T
E

R
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 I
N

C
 

U
N

K
N

O
W

N
 O

W
N

E
R

 

W
H

E
E

L
E

R
, 

M
A

R
IA

N
 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

2
0
1

2
 

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IE
S

 

A
V

A
N

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

ar
l 

!O
r0

8
 

RE
C

N
O

 

3
0

5
5

 

2
5

2
9
 

2
5

4
0

 

2
5

4
2

 

3
0

0
1

 

9
5

4
 

1
1

2
4

 

2
5

4
5

 

2
7

0
0

 

2
5

5
5

 

2
5

5
6

 

2
5

6
0

 

1
3
0

7
 

2
2

6
6

 

2
6

0
5

 

2
6

0
8
 

T
O

W
N

 O
F

 W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 

UN
P

A
ID

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 B

Y
 N

A
M

E
 

U
N

P
A

ID
 A

S
 O

F
 0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
8

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
S

 2
0

1
0

 T
O

 2
0

1
7
 

M
A

P
 N

U
MB

E
R/I

D
 

RE
A

L
 

P
E

R
S

O
N

A
L

 
M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
 

U
TI

L
ITI

E
S

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

9
7

3
2

8
6

0
3

4
4

 
1

2
8

.4
9
 

1
2

8
.4

9
 

2
0

1
0

8
2

4
1

3
7

5
M

0
0

1
 

2
2

.3
4

 
2

2
.3

4
 

9
7

3
2

7
0

0
0

7
8

 
1

,1
5

8
.2

6
 

1
,1

5
8

.2
6

 

1
2

0
5

1
3

 
3

9
.0

5
 

3
9

.0
5

 

1
2

0
9

1
3

 
1

8
3

.0
8

 
1

8
3
.0

8
 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

: 
2

0
1

0
 

1
,2

8
6

.7
5

 
2

4
4

.4
7

 
1

,5
3
1

.2
2

 

9
7

3
2

8
6

0
3

4
4

 
1

1
2

.6
8
 

1
1

2
.6

8
 

8
2

3
6

3
6

0
 

1
1

3
.6

7
 

1
1

3
.6

7
 

2
0

1
1

8
1

5
5

2
9
1

M
0

0
1

 
7

7
.9

6
 

7
7

.9
6

 

2
0

1
1

8
2

5
0

4
5

3
M

0
0

1
 

1
1

9
.7

5
 

1
1

9
.7

5
 

2
0

1
1

8
1

1
0

6
4

M
0

0
1

 
1

5
5

.9
6

 
1

5
5

.9
6

 

2
0

1
1

8
1

5
2

8
6

8
M

0
0

1
 

4
1

.5
7

 
4

1
.5

7
 

2
0

1
1

8
1

2
9
8

9
9
M

0
0

1
 

1
7

3
.2

9
 

1
7

3
.2

9
 

9
7

4
2

2
8

4
0

4
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

2
0

4
.7

1
 

2
0

4
.7

1
 

9
7

3
2

7
0

5
0

7
9
0

0
0

0
0

 
1

,2
0

3
.2

7
 

1
,2

0
3
.2

7
 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

2
0

1
1

 
1

,5
2

0
.6

6
 

6
8
2

.2
0

 
2

,2
0

2
.8

6
 

2
0

1
2

8
2

1
8
7

9
3
M

0
0

1
 

1
5

.4
8

 
1

5
.4

8
 

2
0

1
2

8
1

6
7

1
0

9
M

0
0

1
 

1
8

.9
5

 
18

.9
5

 

0
8
/1

3
/2

0
1

8
 

I
0

:3
8
:2

1
A

M
 

P
a
g

e 
1 

10



T
O

W
N

 O
F

 W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 

F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8

 
U

N
P

A
ID

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 B

Y
 N

A
M

E
 

U
N

P
A

ID
 A

S
 O

F
 0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
8

 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

S
 2

0
1

0
 T

O
 2

0
1

7
 

N
A

1\.1E
 

RE
C

N
O

 
M

A
P

 N
U

MB
E

R/I
D

 
REAL

 
P

E
R

S
O

N
AL

 
M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
 

U
TI

L
ITI

E
S

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

B
A

L
L

E
W

, 
T

O
N

Y
 R

E
E

D
 

2
4

4
 

9
73

28
60

34
4

 
9

4
.8

7
 

9
4

.8
7

 

B
A

RB
E

R
, L

Y
D

IA
 

16
18

 
82

36
36

0 
9

0.
07

 
9

0.
07

 

C
A

R
O

L
IN

A
 C

RE
E

K
 

2
61

3
 

20
12

8
23

38
4

8
M

00
1 

61
.2

8
 

61
.2

8
 

D
A

 V
IS

 H
E

IR
S

, J
U

L
IA

 M
. 

1
0

72
 

9
7

4
2

2
84

0
4

60
0

0
0

0
 

1
72

.4
2

 
1

72
.4

2
 

G
L

O
B

A
L

 C
L

A
IM

S
 S

P
E

C
IA

L
IS

T
S

 
2

6
1

7 
2

01
2

8
15

52
9

1M
00

1 
65

.6
4

 
65

.6
4

 

L
E

D
F

O
R

D
, 

B
IL

L
 R

 
26

21
 

2
01

2
8

08
61

2
0M

00
1

 
3

2
7.

9
4

 
32

7.
9

4 

M
E

E
C

E
, J

O
S

H
U

A
 H

E
A

T
H

 
14

01
 

81
81

63
6 

8
7

.5
5

 
87

.5
5

 

P
O

P
P

Y
'S

 K
IT

C
H

E
N

 L
L

C
 

2
6

3
0

 
2

01
2

81
10

9
64

M
00

1 
1

3
1

.3
0

 
1

3
1

.3
0 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

20
12

 
2

67
.2

9
 

79
8

.2
1

 
1

,0
65

.5
0

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

20
13

 

A
D

A
l\.1

S
 M

IC
H

A
E

L
 F

 
2

52
5 

9
73

17
8

63
2

7 
51

.2
9

 
51

.2
9

 

A
D

V
E

R
T

IS
IN

G
 S

T
R

A
T

E
G

IE
S

 
25

26
 

20
13

82
18

79
3M

00
1 

12
.1

1 
1

2
.1

1
 

B
-L

A
N

D
 3

5
 L

L
C

2
52

7
 

9
7

52
2

8
80

50
 

2
6

0
.7

3
 

2
60

.7
3

 

B
A

L
L

E
W

 T
O

N
Y

 R
E

E
D

 
25

28
 

9
73

2
8

60
3

4
4

 
81

.8
6 

8
1

.8
6 

B
Y

E
R

S
 T

H
O

M
A

S
 W

 
25

30
 

97
42

24
35

90
 

9
.1

1 
9

.1
1

 

F
E

D
E

R
A

L
 N

A
T

IO
N

A
L

 
2

53
3

 
9

7
3

1
7

8
4

74
5 

53
.7

5 
53

.7
5 

F
IS

H
E

R
 K

A
T

IE
 

25
34

 
9

74
2

2
68

1
79

 
8.

8
8

 
8

.8
8

 

K
E

E
R

A
N

 J
O

H
N

 D
 

2
53

5 
9

74
2

3
70

52
60

00
00

 
9

.1
7

 
9

.1
7

 

L
A

N
D

J
O

N
R

 
25

36
 

9
74

24
83

57
5 

1
9

.5
6 

19
.5

6 

L
E

D
F

O
R

D
 B

IL
L

 R
 

2
53

8 
92

31
3 

1
.5

4
 

1
.5

4
 

L
E

V
I 

L
IN

D
A

 C
A

N
N

O
N

 
25

39
 

9
73

29
85

97
2 

41
.8

1 
41

.8
1 

M
A

C
D

O
N

A
L

D
 A

L
A

N
 L

O
U

IS
 

2
54

1
 

09
23

13
 

1
6.

4
3

 
1

6.
4

3
 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

0
8

/1
3

/2
0

1
8

 
10

:3
8

:2
1A

M
 

P
a
g
e 

2 
a
r
l 

I 
O
r
0
8
 

11



T
O

W
N

 O
F

 W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 

F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8

 
U

N
P

A
ID

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 B

Y
 N

A
M

E
 

UN
P

A
ID

 A
S

 O
F

 0
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
S

 2
0

1
0

 T
O

 2
0

1
7
 

N
A

ME
 

RE
C

N
O

 
M

A
P

 N
U

MB
E

R/
ID

 
RE

A
L

 
P

E
R

S
O

N
A

L
 

M
E

R
C

HAN
T

 
U

TI
L

ITI
E

S 
T

O
T

A
L

 

M
E

E
C

E
 J

O
S

H
U

A
 H

E
A

T
H

 
2

5
4
3
 

0
0

9
2

3
1

3
 

6
9

.1
0

 
6

9
.1

0
 

N
O

R
D

L
A

N
D

 M
A

RK
 W

 
2

5
4

5
 

9
7

4
2

2
5

3
9

0
0

 
9

.3
9

 
9

.3
9

 

N
O

R
T

H
E

RN
 L

E
A

S
IN

G
 S

Y
S

T
E

M
S

 
2

5
4

6
 

9
2

3
1

3
2

 
0

.1
0

 
0

.1
0

 

P
O

P
P

Y
S

 K
JT

C
H

E
N

 
2

5
4

9
 

0
0

2
4

9
6

-1
3

-p
 

1
2

1
.2

4
 

1
2

1
.2

4
 

R
ID

D
L

E
, 

C
L

A
Y

T
O

N
 

2
5

5
0

 
1

2
1

2
1

3
5

 
7

.5
5

 
7

.5
5

 

T
AX

 Y
E

AR
: 
2

0
1

3
 

5
4

5
.5

5
 

2
2

8
.0

7
 

7
7

3
.6

2
 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 
2

0
1

4
 

A
L

E
M

A
N

, 
V

IN
IC

IO
 P

IN
E

D
O

 
8

3
1

 
9

7
3

2
9

1
5

6
7

3
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
5

 
0

.0
5

 

A
M

E
R

IG
A

S
 P

R
O

P
A

N
E

 L
P

 D
B

A
 

2
3

4
7

 
P

7
9

4
8

9
2

 
0

.1
0

 
0

.1
0

 

A
RR

O
Y

O
, 

F
RA

N
C

IS
C

O
 

1
8

5
4

 
9

7
4

2
1

7
9

2
1

9
0

0
0

0
0

 
3

.5
4

 
3

.5
4

 

A
T

H
E

N
S

R
E

S
T

A
U

R
A

N
T

L
L

C
 

2
3

1
6

 
P

7
9

6
1

9
3

 
3

.3
6

 
3

.3
6

 

A
V

 A
N

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
 I

N
C

. 
2

7
3

5
 

8
0

0
6

0
7

2
0

1
4

 
7

.8
5

 
7

.8
5

 

B
-L

A
N

D
 3

5
 L

L
C

2
0

8
9
 

9
7
5

2
2

8
8

0
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

 
2

5
0

.2
3

 
2

5
0

.2
3

 

B
A

G
W

E
L

L
, 

N
E

L
L

 
1

6
7

0
 

9
7

4
2

1
7

1
5

7
9

0
0

0
0

0
 

6
.3

0
 

6
.3

0
 

B
A

L
L

E
W

, 
T

O
N

Y
 R

E
E

D
 

3
7

2
 

9
7

3
2

8
6

0
3

4
4

0
0

0
0

0
 

7
8

.5
6

 
7

8
.5

6
 

C
O

A
T

E
S

, 
T

H
O

M
A

S
 E

A
R

L
 

3
0

0
 

9
7

4
2

0
8

9
7

9
1

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.1

1
 

0
.1

1
 

C
O

L
E

, 
JO

E
L

 S
T

E
P

H
E

N
 

5
1

4
 

9
7

4
2

1
9

0
1

5
2

0
0

0
0

0
 

4
.3

9
 

4
.3

9
 

E
L

IZ
A

B
E

T
H

 H
 S

E
A

R
L

E
 D

B
A

 
2

4
0

8
 

P
8

0
0

1
2

5
 

0
.2

5
 

0
.2

5
 

F
A

U
S

T
M

A
NN

, 
R

IC
H

A
R

D
 

2
0

7
7

 
9

7
5

3
3

0
4

2
6

9
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
2

 
0

.0
2

 

G
O

T
H

A
R

D
, 
D

O
R

IS
 C

 
61

3
 

9
7
3

2
7
0

0
7
1

5
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
1

 
0

.0
1

 

G
T

E
C

H
 C

O
R

P
O

R
A

T
IO

N
 

2
4
5

0
 

P
7

9
4

6
6

2
 

0
.5

2
 

0
.5

2
 

H
M

V
H

N
-3

V
H

M
 L

L
C

 
1

4
6

1
 

9
7

3
2

7
9

6
3

5
8

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.3

2
 

0
.3

2
 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

0
8
/1

3
/2

0
1

8
 

I0
:3

8
:2

1
A

M
 

P
a

g
e 

3
 

ar
l 

10
r0

8 

12



F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8
 

N
A

ME
 

H
O

Y
L

E
, 

R
O

B
E

R
T

 A
 

H
U

D
S

O
N

, 
JO

H
N

 E
 I

II
 

IS
AB

E
L

 M
 C

O
L

E
 (

L
E

) 

JE
RR

Y
 B

 H
O

L
L

A
D

A
Y

 E
T

 A
L

 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

, B
R

IA
N

 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

, S
U

S
A

N
 

K
C

 B
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

 C
O

 I
N

C
 

K
IN

G
S

T
O

N
, 

R
E

B
E

C
C

A
 

M
 G

 B
 &

 A
S

S
O

C
IA

T
E

S
 

M
A

C
D

O
N

A
L

D
, A

L
A

N
 L

O
U

IS
 

N
E

L
L

E
N

E
 S

 W
E

S
T

 R
E

V
O

C
A

B
L

E
 

N
IC

H
O

L
S

O
N

, 
D

O
N

A
L

D
 P

 

O
S

H
IM

A
, 
R

IK
I 

P
A

T
R

IC
K

, 
JO

H
N

 

P
A

T
RI

C
K

, 
JO

H
N

 

P
A

Y
N

E
,R

O
B

E
R

T
AL

A
N

 

R
O

B
E

R
T

 M
IT

C
H

E
L

L
 D

B
A

 A
R

T
 

S
W

IC
E

G
O

O
D

, 
J 

C
A

R
R

 J
R

 

W
AB

A
S

H
A

 L
E

A
S

IN
G

 L
L

C
 

W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 P
U

B
 L

L
C

 D
B

A
 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

2
0

1
5

 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

ar
l 

10
r0

8 

RE
C

N
O

 

2
2

9
0

 

7
7

0
 

1
2

5
6

 

6
0

9
 

1
8

6
3

 

2
2

5
4

 

2
3

4
9

 

2
0

4
2

 

2
7

3
8

 

2
2

8
5

 

1
6

8
7

 

1
8

1
0

 

1
5

4
6
 

1
5

4
7

 

1
5

4
8

 

9
3

2
 

2
4

66
 

4
9

3
 

2
4

1
8

 

2
4

1
5

 

T
O

W
N

 O
F

 W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 

UN
P

A
ID

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 B

Y
 N

A
M

E
 

U
N

P
A

ID
 A

S
 O

F
 0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
8
 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

S
 2

0
1

0
 T

O
 2

0
1

7
 

M
A

P
 NU

MB
E

R/ID
 

RE
A

L
 

P
E

R
S

O
N

A
L

 
M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
 

U
TI

L
ITI

E
S

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

P
7

5
3

2
6

3
 

3
2

.7
1

 
3

2
.7

1
 

9
7

3
2

7
0

9
8

6
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.1

4
 

0
.1

4
 

9
7

4
3

3
3

5
7

9
9

0
0

0
0

0
 

3
.9

5
 

3
.9

5
 

9
7

3
1

7
9

8
1

2
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

2
.8

6
 

2
.8

6
 

9
7

4
2

2
8

6
0

1
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
.2

7
 

1
.2

7
 

9
7

3
2

9
6

1
5

8
8

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.2

4
 

0
.2

4
 

P
7

9
3

8
7

2
 

3
.7

6
 

3
.7

6
 

9
7

5
2

0
5

7
4

5
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

4
.5

4
 

4
.5

4
 

7
9

4
5

7
2

2
0

1
4

 
2

.3
6

 
2

.3
6

 

P
6

9
0

9
0

0
 

1
5

.0
0

 
1

5
.0

0
 

9
7

4
2

2
7

4
2

2
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
.1

5
 

1
.1

5
 

9
7

4
2

2
5

6
0

8
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

5
3

.9
0

 
5

3
.9

0
 

9
7

5
2

1
5

3
6

5
9

0
0

0
0

0
 

6
.9

8
 

6
.9

8
 

9
7

5
2

5
9

5
8

5
1

0
0

0
0

0
 

5
.5

2
 

5
.5

2
 

9
7

5
2

5
9
1

4
7

7
0

0
0

0
0

 
8

.0
8

 
8

.0
8

 

9
7

4
2

1
9

6
2

0
4

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.2

9
 

0
.2

9
 

P
8

0
1

0
4

7
 

0
.4

8
 

0
.4

8
 

9
7

4
2

2
9

6
9

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

2
.1

8
 

2
.1

8
 

P
7

9
3

9
6

8
 

0
.3

0
 

0
.3

0
 

P
7

9
7

5
3

8
 

2
,3

7
7

.7
2

 
2

,3
7

7
.7

2
 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

: 
2

0
1

4
 

4
3

4
.6

3
 

2
,4

4
4

.4
1

 
2

,8
7

9
.0

4
 

0
8

/1
3

/2
0

1
8

 
1

0
:3

8
:2

1
A

M
 

P
a
g

e 
4 

13



F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8

 

N
A

ME
 

A
V

 A
N

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
 I

N
C

 

B
A

RB
A

RA
 L

 W
E

IKE
L

 

B
R

IN
S

O
N

, 
F

RE
D

 E
 

C
L

IN
E

D
IN

S
T

, 
N

A
N

C
Y

 L
O

U
 

C
O

L
T

U
N

, 
E

IL
E

E
N

 J
 

C
O

L
T

U
N

, 
E

IL
E

E
N

 J
 

C
O

L
T

U
N

, 
E

IL
E

E
N

 J
 

E
D

W
A

R
D

S
, 

G
R

E
G

O
R

Y
 J

 

G
R

E
IN

E
R

, 
B

Y
R

O
N

 

IS
A

B
E

L
 M

 C
O

L
E

 (
L

E
) 

JA
M

E
S

 G
 V

A
N

 S
T

O
R

Y
 

JE
B

S
E

N
, 
M

IC
H

A
E

L
 A

 

M
A

N
N

E
R

, 
JA

N
E

 S
 

M
C

F
A

R
L

A
N

D
, 

ANN
E

 L
 

M
E

RE
D

IT
H

 O
 M

C
L

A
U

G
H

L
IN

 

P
R

IC
E

, 
V

IN
S

O
N

 

R
O

G
E

R
S

, 
T

E
R

R
Y

 L
 

R
S

 C
O

N
S

T
R

U
C

T
IO

N
 O

F
 

S
N

Y
D

E
R

, 
M

IC
H

A
E

L
 J

O
S

E
P

H
 

V
E

L
T

M
A

N
, 

S
T

E
P

H
E

N
 P

 

W
E

S
S

E
L

M
A

N
, 

JO
S

E
P

H
 C

 

W
IS

E
, 
L

E
O

N
A

R
D

 G
 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

a
r
l 

!O
r
0
8
 

RE
C

N
O

 

2
5

5
0

 

1
2

2
3

 

3
3

6
 

1
1

6
3

 

1
8

6
3

 

1
8

6
4

 

1
8

6
5

 

1
1

1
 

2
1

6
5

 

1
2

3
7

 

1
9

6
 

1
6

9
6

 

1
2

7
7

 

1
4

2
2

 

6
5

2
 

2
2

8
 

6
0

4
 

1
7

4
7

 

4
0

0
5

 

1
5

0
6

 

1
4

2
7

 

2
2

2
2

 

T
O

W
N

 O
F

 W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 

UN
P

A
ID

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 B

Y
 N

A
M

E
 

UN
P

A
ID

 A
S
 O

F
 0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
8

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
S
 2

0
1
0

 T
O

 2
0

1
7
 

M
A

P
 N

U
M

B
E

R/I
D

 
RE

A
L

 
P

E
R

S
O

N
A

L
 

M
E

R
C

H
A

N
T

 
U

TI
L

ITI
E

S
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

P
8

0
0

6
0

7
 

7
.8

1
 

7
.8

1
 

9
7

4
2

7
9

6
9

9
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.5

5
 

0
.5

5
 

9
7

3
2

8
6

8
3

1
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

6
 

0
.0

6
 

9
7

4
2

2
3

4
6

6
4

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.3

6
 

0
.3

6
 

9
7

4
2

2
9
0

0
8

0
0

0
0

0
0

 
1

.3
3

 
1

.3
3

 

9
7

4
2

2
8

1
8

0
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
.2

9
 

1
.2

9
 

9
7

4
2

2
8

0
8

2
5

0
0

0
0

0
 

9
.4

5
 

9
.4

5
 

9
7

4
2

2
4

3
2

1
9

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

2
 

0
.0

2
 

9
7

3
2

6
0

6
2

4
9
0

0
0

0
0

 
O

.Q
7

O
.Q

7

9
7

4
3

3
3

5
7

9
9

0
0

0
0

0
 

3
.8

9
 

3
.8

9
 

9
7

4
2

2
8

4
5

2
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
3

.7
8

 
1

3
.7

8
 

9
7

5
2

2
9

3
0

6
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.1

9
 

0
.1

9
 

9
7

3
2

6
0

5
1

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

6
 

0
.0

6
 

9
7

4
2

0
7

4
2

6
8

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

2
 

0
.0

2
 

9
7

3
2

9
6

7
7

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.5

1
 

0
.5

1
 

9
7

4
2

0
9

0
6

8
7

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

1
 

0
.0

1
 

9
7

3
1

6
9

4
6

5
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.2

0
 

0
.2

0
 

9
7

5
2

6
8

1
7

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.4

3
 

0
.4

3
 

3
0

1
6

6
0

4
2

 
2

2
2

.4
9

 
2

2
2

.4
9

 

9
7

3
2

8
6

5
9

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.9

9
 

0
.9

9
 

9
7

5
2

3
8

4
5

8
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

2
.7

4
 

2
.7

4
 

9
7

5
2

2
8

1
2

5
4

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.6

2
 

0
.6

2
 

0
8

/1
3
/2

0
1

8
 

1
0

:3
8

:2
1

A
M

 
P

a
g
e 

5 

14



T
O

WN
 O

F
 W

E
A

 V
E

R
V

IL
L

E
 

F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8
 

UN
P

A
ID

 B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 R

E
P

O
R

T
 B

Y
 N

A
M

E
 

UN
P

A
ID

 A
S
 O

F
 0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
8
 

T
AX

 Y
E

A
R

S
 2

0
1

0
 T

O
 2

0
1

7
 

N
A

ME
 

RE
C

N
O

 
M

A
P
 NU

MB
E

R/I
D

 
RE

A
L

 
P

E
R

S
O

N
A

L
 

M
E

R
C

HAN
T

 
U

TI
L

ITI
E

S
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

Y
A

N
C

E
Y

,
Z

A
K

 
1

1
3

2
 

9
7

3
1

7
9
7

9
8

3
0

0
0

0
0

 
4

0
.9

7
 

4
0

.9
7

 

Y
O

U
R

 S
T

AF
F

 P
L

U
S

 I
N

C
 

2
3

6
2

 
P

7
9
8

7
3

5
 

0
.0

9
 

0
.0

9
 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

2
0

1
5
 

7
7

.5
4

 
2

3
0

.3
9

 
3

0
7

.9
3

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

2
0

1
6

 

A
L

L
E

N
,

 JO
N

A
T

H
A

N
 R

O
B

 
5

7
7

6
 

9
7

4
3

3
1

8
7

7
9
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
6

 
0

.0
6

 

A
M

S
C

H
L

E
R

, 
M

A
T

T
H

E
W

 
7

0
7

2
 

9
7

3
2

6
1

9
3

0
1

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.3

1
 

0
.3

1
 

A
N

D
E

R
S

O
N

,
 P

H
IL

IP
 E

R
IC

 
6

4
0

6
 

9
7

3
2

7
1

6
0

2
4

0
0

0
0

0
 

5
.5

2
 

5
.5

2
 

A
V

A
N

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
 I

N
C

 
5

2
8

3
 

P
8

0
0

6
0

7
 

0
.0

5
 

0
.0

5
 

B
A

G
W

E
L

L
,

 N
E

L
L

 
6

0
5

7
 

9
7

4
2

1
7

1
5

7
9
0

0
0

0
0

 
2

.2
6

 
2

.2
6

 

B
AL

C
R

A
N

K
P

R
O

D
U

C
T

S
IN

C
 

5
6

7
5

 
9
7

4
2

3
3

2
6

3
7

0
0

0
0

0
 

6
.3

1
 

6
.3

1
 

B
A

L
C

RA
N

K
 P

R
O

D
U

C
T

S
 I

N
C

 
6

2
0

4
 

9
7

4
2

2
4

9
1

6
7

0
0

0
0

0
 

9
7

.2
4

 
9
7

.2
4

 

B
E

A
S

L
E

Y
,

 R
O

G
E

R
 W

A
Y

N
E

 
5

3
8

8
 

P
7

5
8

7
7

1
 

2
5

.3
5

 
2

5
.3

5
 

B
U

IJ
S

M
A

N
,

 L
O

R
E

N
E

 G
O

R
D

O
N

 
6

8
7

2
 

9
7

5
2

4
9
6

4
4

3
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.5
7
 

0
.5

7
 

B
U

R
N

E
T

T
E

,
 JA

N
E

T
 C

 
6

4
8

0
 

9
7

4
3

2
0

6
4

3
1

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.8

8
 

0
.8

8
 

C
H

E
R

R
IE

 G
 K

N
IG

H
T

 L
IV

IN
G

 
6

3
5

2
 

9
7

5
2

1
5

1
4

5
5

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.1

2
 

0
.1

2
 

C
O

D
Y

, 
E

D
W

A
R

D
 D

 
6

1
0

6
 

9
7

4
2
2

4
2

1
6

5
0

0
0

0
0

 
4

.3
2

 
4

.3
2

 

C
O

G
D

IL
L

,
 G

E
O

R
G

E
 L

 
7

3
5

0
 

9
7

3
2

9
6

2
9
7

8
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
3

 
0

.0
3

 

D
A

B
O

O
S

H
,

 P
A

T
R

IC
IA

 
7

6
2

6
 

9
7

3
2

8
6

9
4

5
2

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.6

1
 

0
.6

1
 

D
E

IT
Z

,
 M

A
B

E
L

 
5

7
8

9
 

9
7

4
2

2
8

2
5

4
7

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

4
 

0
.0

4
 

E
F

L
A

N
D

, 
JU

L
IA

 M
C

D
AN

IE
L

 
5

9
8

1
 

9
7

4
2

1
6

6
4

8
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.5

7
 

0
.5

7
 

E
L

IZ
A

B
E

T
H

 H
 S

E
A

R
L

E
 D

B
A

 
5

3
1

6
 

P
8

0
0

1
2

5
 

0
.1

5
 

0
.1

5
 

H
IG

G
IN

S
, 

M
A

R
Y

 R
U

T
H

 R
IC

E
 

6
6

5
1
 

9
7

4
2

1
6

9
9
5

6
0

0
0

0
0

 
1

.5
3

 
1

.5
3

 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

0
8

/1
3

/2
0

1
8

 
1

0
:3

8
:2

1
A

M
 

P
a
g

e 
6 

a
rl

 !
O

r0
8
 

15



F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8
 

N
A

ME
 

H
U

G
H

E
S

, 
M

E
G

A
N

 L
E

IG
H

 

IS
A

B
E

L
 M

 C
O

L
E

 (
L

E
) 

J
A

M
IS

O
N

, J
AN

E
T

 R
 

M
A

R
S

H
A

L
L

,
 E

L
AI

N
E

 E
 

M
U

Z
A

K
L

L
C

 

M
Y

E
R

S
, 
L

A
U

R
A

 

N
E

L
M

S
 (

L
E

),
 H

E
R

B
E

R
T

 R
A

Y
 

P
A

R
K

E
R

, 
N

A
N

C
Y

 R
U

S
S

E
L

L
 

P
A

T
T

O
N

,
 C

A
M

E
R

O
N

 

R
E

E
D

,
 B

R
IA

N
 K

 

S
M

IT
H

,
 H

A
R

V
E

Y
 J

 

S
N

Y
D

E
R

,
M

IC
H

A
E

L
J

O
S

E
P

H
 

S
W

IC
E

G
O

O
D

,
 J
 C

A
R

R
 J

R
 

T
H

E
 C

O
T

T
A

G
E

 D
O

O
R

 I
N

C
 

T
H

E
 S

Q
W

E
E

L
IN

' P
IG

 

T
O

M
M

Y
 &

 N
IC

K
 P

A
R

T
N

E
R

S
H

IP
 

T
R

A
V

IS
,
 J
U

S
T

IN
 

W
ID

E
N

H
O

U
S

E
,
 O

L
IV

E
R

 C
R

AI
G

 

Y
A

N
C

E
Y

,
Z

A
K

 

Y
O

U
R

 S
T

A
F

F
 P

L
U

S
 I

N
C

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
: 

2
0

1
7
 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

ar
l 

10
r0

8 

RE
C

N
O

 

6
5

3
1

 

5
5

3
9
 

6
3

1
3

 

7
0

3
6

 

5
4

3
5

 

7
6

8
6

 

6
0

4
1

 

6
4

1
8

 

5
7

3
1

 

6
7
8

5
 

7
3

4
3

 

5
2
2

6
 

6
0

8
9
 

5
3

5
2
 

5
3

1
5

 

5
2

3
7

 

5
5

1
4

 

6
9
6

3
 

7
0

7
6

 

5
2
1

2
 

T
O

W
N

 O
F

 W
E

A
 V

E
R

V
IL

L
E

 

U
N

P
A

ID
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 B
Y

 N
A

M
E

 
UN

P
A

ID
 A

S
 O

F
 0

6
/3

0
/2

0
1
8

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
S

 2
0

 I
O

 T
O

 2
0

1
7

 

M
A

P
 NU

MB
E

R/I
D

 
RE

A
L
 

P
E

R
S

O
N

A
L

 
M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
 

U
TI

L
ITI

E
S

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

9
7

5
2

1
5

1
3

9
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.5

0
 

0
.5

0
 

9
7
4

3
3

3
5

7
9

9
0

0
0

0
0

 
3

.7
2
 

3
.7

2
 

9
7

4
2

1
8

2
6

3
9

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

4
 

0
.0

4
 

9
7
5

2
3

9
4

4
9

8
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
2

 
0

.0
2

 

P
3

0
2

0
6

5
0

 
0

.2
9

 
0

.2
9

 

9
7
3

2
6

0
4

7
8

1
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.2
2

 
0

.2
2

 

9
7
4

2
2
4

9
8

7
1

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.5

0
 

0
.5

0
 

9
7
3

2
6

0
8

7
5

4
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
1

 
0

.0
1

 

9
7
4

3
3

0
5

2
9

1
0

0
0

0
0

 
1

1
.9

0
 

1
1

.9
0

 

9
7

4
2

1
3

4
8

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
5

3
.9

1
 

1
5

3
.9

1
 

9
7
4

3
5

0
3

4
8

2
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.2
4

 
0

.2
4

 

P
3

0
1

6
6

0
4

 
1

9
7
.6

4
 

1
9

7
.6

4
 

9
7

4
2

2
9

6
9

2
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.8

3
 

0
.8

3
 

P
3

0
1

6
1

9
2
 

1
2
.4

7
 

1
2

.4
7

 

P
3

0
0

4
2

7
5

 
2

9
.1

0
 

2
9

.1
0

 

P
3

0
2

0
7

6
9

 
1

.2
4

 
1

.2
4

 

9
7
5

2
3

8
7
3

6
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

2
.9

9
 

2
.9

9
 

9
7
4

2
2
8

8
0

0
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.1

3
 

0
.1

3
 

9
7

3
1

7
9

7
9

8
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.2

6
 

0
.2

6
 

P
7
9

8
7
3

5
 

0
.o

7
0

.0
7

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
AR

: 
2

0
1

6
 

2
9

5
.6

4
 

2
6

6
.3

6
 

5
6

2
.0

0
 

0
8

/1
3

/2
0

1
8

 
1

0
:3

8
:2

I
A

M
 

P
a
g

e 
7 

16



F
Y

 2
0

1
7-

2
0

1
8

N
A

ME
 

1
2

2
 K

Y
F

IE
L

D
S

 L
L

C
 

5
1

5
 M

A
N

A
G

E
M

E
N

T
 C

O
M

P
A

N
Y

 

A
N

G
E

L
, 

JE
R

A
L

D
 D

 

A
V

A
N

T
 G

A
R

D
E

N
 I

N
C

 

B
IL

L
 R

 L
E

D
F

O
R

D
 D

B
A

 L
E

 T
AN

 

B
RE

W
E

R
, 

F
R

A
N

KL
IN

 R
 

B
R

E
W

E
R

, 
F

RA
N

K
L

IN
 R

 

B
R

O
W

N
, 

E
D

IT
H

 M
 

C
L

A
IR

E
 B

 R
E

C
T

O
R

 (
L

E
) 

C
O

L
L

IN
S

, 
S

A
R

A
 

D
A

U
B

S
, 

JA
M

E
S

 

E
D

W
ARD

S
, 

B
E

RN
IE

 D
 

E
L

IZ
AB

E
T

H
 H

 S
E

A
R

L
E

 D
B

A
 

F
O

G
A

L
, 

C
A

R
O

L
E

 J
E

A
N

 H
O

L
E

Y
 

G
R

IF
F

IN
, 

JO
Y

 L
E

IG
H

 

G
U

L
F

 E
Q

U
IT

IE
S

 L
L

C
 

JO
H

N
S

O
N

, 
C

A
T

H
E

R
IN

E
 J

A
N

E
 

L
A

K
E

S
ID

E
 M

E
A

D
O

W
S

 

L
E

C
H

N
E

R
, 

F
R

E
D

 P
 

L
E

V
I,

 L
IN

D
A

 C
A

N
N

O
N

 

M
E

A
D

O
W

S
, 

JU
L

IE
 

M
IC

H
A

E
L

 D
 M

E
T

C
A

L
F

 D
B

A
 

D
E

B
B

IE
 

a
rl

 !
O

r0
8
 

REC
N

O
 

2
2

0
8

 

3
0

3
 

1
1

4
5

 

3
5

8
 

2
6

8
 

9
8

8
 

2
4

9
4

 

2
1

7
7

 

7
7

0
 

7
4

5
 

2
0

6
8

 

2
2

6
8

 

3
1

9
 

2
5

3
7

 

1
7

9
 

2
2

8
9
 

2
1

2
6

 

2
4

5
4

 

1
4

7
1

 

1
8

5
0

 

4
2

7
 

3
3

4
 

T
O

WN
 O

F
 W

E
A

 V
E

R
V

IL
L

E
 

U
N

P
A

ID
 B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 R
E

P
O

R
T

 B
Y

 N
A

M
E

 
U

N
P

A
ID

 A
S

 O
F

 0
6

/3
0

/2
0

1
8

 

T
A

X
 Y

E
A

R
S

 2
0
1

0
 T

O
 2

0
1

7
 

M
A

P
 N

U
MB

E
R/I

D
 

RE
A

L
 

P
E

R
S

O
N

A
L

 
M

E
R

C
H

A
N

T
 

U
TI

L
ITI

E
S

 
T

O
T

A
L

 

9
7

3
2

8
6

9
6

2
8

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.2

4
 

0
.2

4
 

P
8

0
0

9
0

3
 

0
.1

6
 

0
.1

6
 

9
7

4
2

2
4

2
2

9
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
3

.8
0

 
1

3
.8

0
 

P
8

0
0

6
0

7
 

5
.8

8
 

5
.8

8
 

P
7

9
6

0
4

1
 

7
6

.7
4

 
7

6
.7

4
 

9
7

4
3

2
1

2
3

2
4

0
0

0
0

0
 

1
1

1
.9

9
 

1
1

1
.9

9
 

9
7

4
3

2
1

0
3

6
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

4
8

5
.8

2
 

4
8

5
.8

2
 

9
7

3
2

9
5

4
2

8
2

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

8
 

0
.0

8
 

9
7

4
3

3
0

0
9
8

1
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.8
3

 
0

.8
3

 

9
7

3
2

7
1

3
0

0
7

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.1

1
 

0
.1

1
 

9
7

5
2

2
9
5

7
5

3
0

0
0

0
0

 
1

.1
3

 
1

.1
3

 

9
7

4
2

0
9
6

6
1

8
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.0
1

 
0

.0
1

 

P
8

0
0

1
2

5
 

0
.1

6
 

0
.1

6
 

9
7

3
2

7
0

0
9
9
0

0
0

0
0

0
 

6
.0

7
 

6
.0

7
 

P
3

0
2

0
4

4
6

 
4

7
.8

8
 

4
7

.8
8

 

9
7

4
2

1
6

4
3

5
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

4
9

8
.7

4
 

4
9
8

.7
4

 

9
7

4
3

2
0

6
6

5
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

6
.8

2
 

6
.8

2
 

9
7

4
2

1
5

3
4

1
6

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.4

2
 

0
.4

2
 

9
7

3
2

6
1

7
1

3
2

0
0

0
0

0
 

0
.0

6
 

0
.0

6
 

9
7

3
2

9
8

5
9
7

2
0

0
0

0
0

 
0

.2
9
 

0
.2

9
 

9
7

3
2

7
0

7
2

2
3

0
0

0
0

0
 

6
6

8
.3

2
 

6
6

8
.3

2
 

P
7

9
9
2

8
0

 
5

9
1

.4
6

 
5

9
1

.4
6

 

0
8

/1
3

/2
0
1

8
 

1
0
:3

8
:2

1
A

M
 

P
a
g
e 

8 

17



18



RESOLUTION APPROVING THE SETTLEMENT OF THE TAX COLLECTOR 
FOR THE 2017-2018 TAX YEAR 

 WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-352 requires that settlement be made with the Tax 
Collector for the taxes charged to the Tax Collector in the previous tax year prior to 
delivery of the tax receipts to the Tax Collector for the current tax year, said settlement 
being conducted in accordance with NCGS § 105-373; and 

 WHEREAS, NCGS 105-373 requires that settlement be made for both taxes charged 
to the Tax Collector in the previous tax year, and for all delinquent taxes charged to the Tax 
Collector, there being a specified format for current year settlements, but not delinquent 
taxes; and 

 WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council has received a proposed settlement for 
the 2017-2018 tax year taxes, and all delinquent taxes charged to the Tax Collector for 
prior tax years; 

 Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED as follows: 

1. The Settlement for the 2017-2018 taxes charged to the Tax Collector is hereby 
approved. The Board finds: 

a. All prepayments received by the Tax Collector were properly deposited; 
b. The settlement is in proper form; and 
c. A diligent effort was made to collect from the persons who were legally 

obligated to pay their taxes for the 2017-2018 fiscal year. 

2. The Settlement for the delinquent taxes charged to the Tax Collector for the 
previous fiscal years is hereby approved. The Town Council finds that the settlement 
for the delinquent taxes is in an appropriate form. 
 
THIS the 20th  day of August, 2018. 
 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
_____________________________________________ 
Allan P. Root, Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

19



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018   

SUBJECT: Tax Release 

PRESENTER:   Finance Officer 

ATTACHMENTS: None 
 
  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

Town Council is asked to approve a tax release for the 2010 tax bill on property owned by 
Kenneth P. Lovelace at 5 Marlwood Court which bears Buncombe County PIN 9732-70-
0078. The requested release is for $164,501 in value and $896.51 from the 2010 tax levy. 
This bill was a duplicate bill and those taxes have already been paid.  

 

TOWN COUNCIL ACTION: 

Town Council is requested to approved the above-described release. This action could be in 
the form of the following motion:  

I move to approve the release of the duplicate valuation of $164,501 on the 
Kenneth P Lovelace property identified as PIN 9732-70-0078 for 2010, so that 
$896.51 can be released from the 2010 levy 

20



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting:  August 20, 2018 

Subject: Budget Amendment - Re-appropriations from FY18  

Presenter:   Town Finance Director 

Attachments:  Budget Amendment Form  

 

Description: 

The 2017-2018 Budget contained several items that were received and/or budgeted in 
Fiscal Year 2017-2018, but need to carryforward to Fiscal Year 2018-2019.  These 
amounts reverted to General Fund Balance at 6/30/18, and must be re-appropriated in 
order to be spent in the current Fiscal Year.   

Town Council is asked to approve a budget amendment to add the following expenditure 
items to the 2018-2019 Budget: 

Police Department 

   010-430-431-25000  (Vehicle Supplies)  $1,149.93 

   010-430-431-50100  (Small Equipment)  $7,002.08 

   010-430-431-26450  (ABC Law Enforcement)  $3,595.49 

   010-430-431-26400  (Alcohol Ed & Prevention)  $1,392.48 

  

 

 

Action Requested: 

Town Manager recommends approval of the attached Budget Amendment. 

 

21



Budget Amendment 

Town of Weaverville 

 

What expense accounts are to be increased? 

 

Account  Account Description  Transfer Amount 
010-430-431-25000  Police – Vehicle Supplies  $1,149.93 
010-430-431-50100  Police – Small Equipment  $7,002.08 
010-430-431-26450  Police – ABC Law Enforcement  $3,595.49 
010-430-431-26400  Police – Alcohol Ed & Prevention  $1,392.48 
     
     

 

What expense account(s) are to be decreased or additional revenue expected to offset expense? 

 
Account 

 Account Description  Transfer Amount 

010-004-310-09900  Appropriated Fund Balance                       $8,152.01 
010-004-300-06050  ABC Store – Police Dept.                       $3,595.49 
010-004-300-06045  ABC Store – Alcohol Education                       $1,392.48 
     
     
     

 

Justification:  Please provide a brief justification for this budget amendment.   

Re-appropriations from FY18 Budget to FY19 Budget. 

    
Authorized by Finance Officer  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Manager  Date  
    
    
Authorized by Town Council (if applicable)  Date  

 

 
Budget Ordinance Section 7: 

B. The Budget Officer or his/her designee is hereby authorized to distribute departmental funds based upon the line 
item budgets and make expenditures therefrom, in accordance with the Local Government Budget and Fiscal 
Control Act. 

C. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may authorize transfers between line items, expenditures and revenues, 
within a department or division without limitation and without a report being required.  

D. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may transfer amounts up to 5%, but not to exceed $10,000 monthly, between 
departments, including contingency appropriations, but only within the same fund. The Budget Officer must make 
an official report on such transfers at a subsequent regular meeting of Town Council. 

E. The Budget Officer or his/her designee may not transfer any amounts between funds, except as approved by Town 
Council, as a budget amendment.  

 

22



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

Date	of	Meeting:

Subject:

Presenter:	 	

Attachments:	 	

August	20,	2018	

Road	Closure	Ordinances		

Selena	D.	Coffey,	Town	Manager	

Road	Closure	Ordinances	

 North	Buncombe	High	School	Parade
 Art	in	Autumn

Description:	

Attached	please	find	the	Ordinances	for	the	road	closures	for	each	respective	event. 

Council	Action	Requested:	

The	Town	Manager	recommends	approval	of	all	three	ordinances.	

Suggested	Motion:	

I	move	to	approve	the	road	closure	ordinances	for	the	North	Buncombe	High	School	

Parade	and	Art	in	Autumn.	

23



Weaverville  

North Carolina 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE  

NORTH BUNCOMBE HOMECOMING PARADE  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of supporting the 
annual North Buncombe Homecoming Parade, that benefits the Weaverville and the North 
Buncombe community; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of providing the North 
Buncombe Homecoming Parade for the pleasure of its citizens; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the North Buncombe Homecoming 
Parade celebration requires approximately one (1) hour to install signage, and also requires 
approximately one (1) hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 
 

NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the authority 
granted by G. S. 20‐169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on the day and 
times set forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway System route: 
 

  North Buncombe Homecoming Parade 
   

  Date:       September 28, 2018 
 

  Time:      4:00 pm until 5:30 pm      
 

  Road Closure:    North Buncombe School Road 
        North Main Street 
        South Main Street 
   
 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road closures and 
detour routes, the implementation of adequate traffic control.  
 

 

        Adopted this 20th day of August, 2018 

 

        __________________________________________ 

        Allan P. Root, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

24



Weaverville  

North Carolina 
 

AN ORDINANCE DECLARING A ROAD CLOSURE FOR THE  

Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival 
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of supporting the 
annual Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival, that benefits the Weaverville and the North 
Buncombe community; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges a long tradition of providing the 
Weaverville Art in Autumn Festival for the pleasure of its citizens; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Town Council of Weaverville acknowledges the Weaverville Art in Autumn 
requires approximately two (2) hours to install signage, and also requires approximately one (1) 
hour for removing signage, litter, etc. 
 
WHEREAS, The Town Council of Weaverville recognizes that the detour route will be 
appropriately marked with signage and personnel at various locations to ensure the motoring 
public travels safely and without unnecessary delay. 
 

NO THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of Weaverville pursuant to the authority 
granted by G. S. 20‐169, that we do hereby declare a temporary road closure on the day and 
times set forth below and the following described portion of a State Highway System route: 
 

  Weaverville Art in Autumn 
   

  Date:       September 15, 2018 
 

  Time:      5:00 am until 8:00 pm      
 

Road Closure:  The portion of Main Street between Church Street and Brown 
Street will be closed and all traffic safely detoured around this 
area. 

   
 

This ordinance to become effective when signs are erected giving notice of the road closures and 
detour routes, the implementation of adequate traffic control.  
 

 

        Adopted this _____ day of ________________, 2018 

 

        __________________________________________ 

        Allan P. Root, Mayor 

 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________________ 
Town Clerk 

25



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

MEETING DATE:  August 20, 2018  

SUBJECT: Board Appointments  

PRESENTER:  Mayor Root 

ATTACHMENTS: Proposed Rosters for Board of Adjustment, Planning and 
Zoning Board and ABC Board 

  
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST:  

There are terms that are expiring in September on the Planning and Zoning Board, 
Board of Adjustment and ABC Board. The Mayor recommends appointments and 
reappointments to these boards as reflected in the suggested motions below. 

 

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

I move that Cynthia Wright be reappointed and Sylvia Valois be appointed as 
regular members of the Board of Adjustment to serve three-year terms 
beginning in September 2018. 

I move that Gene Knoefel be appointed to serve as an alternate member on the 
Board of Adjustment for an unexpired term beginning September 2018 and 
expiring September 2019.  

I move that Gary Burge and Catherine Cordell be reappointed and Steve Warren 
be appointed as regular members of the Planning and Zoning Board to serve 
two-year terms beginning in September 2018. 

I move that John Chase be reappointed to serve as an alternate member on the 
Planning and Zoning Board to serve a two-year term beginning September 
2018.. 

I move that Roney Hilliard be reappointed to the ABC Board to serve a three-
year term beginning in September 2018 and that Rob Chason be designated as 
the ABC Board Chairman.  

26



Proposed – August 20, 2018 
 

WEAVERVILLE 
ZONING BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 

Regularly meets 2nd Monday of the month at 7:00 pm 
 in Town Hall Council Chambers 
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT  

TERM            
(3 YEARS 
STAGGERED) 

Paul Clauhs 
Regular Member 

P.O. Box 483 
74 Hamburg Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
768-6679 
WeavervillePlumbing@hotmail.com  

August 2016 September  
2016 – 2019 

John “Tycer” Lewis 
Regular Member 

14 South College Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 279-4290 
tycerrenovations@gmail.com  

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2020 

Roger Parkin 
Regular Member 
 
 

57 Church Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
828-337-2868 
rdplimey@gmail.com  

August 2017 September  
2017 – 2020 

Cynthia Wright 
Regular Member 

88 Hillcrest Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-1579; (cell)703-862-8428 
wright.cindy2011@gmail.com  

August 2018 September  
2018 – 2021 

Sylvia Valois 
Regular Member 
 
 

42 Loftin Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
504-717-0275 
svalois2000@yahoo.com  

August 2018 September     
2018 - 2021 

Bob Pace 
Alternate Member 
 
 

116 Mountain Meadow Circle 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
919-434-6938 
ncstman@gmail.com  

June 2018 June 2018 – 
September 
2020 

Gene Knoefel 
Alternate Member 

10 Highland Pointe Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
828-645-8800 
gknoefel@charter.net  

August 2018 September 
2018 –2019 

 
James Eller 
Zoning 
Administrator 

484-7002 
jeller@weavervillenc.org  

  

Jennifer Jackson 
Town Attorney 

828-442-1858 
jjackson@weavervillenc.org  
  

  

 

27

mailto:WeavervillePlumbing@hotmail.com
mailto:tycerrenovations@gmail.com
mailto:rdplimey@gmail.com
mailto:wright.cindy2011@gmail.com
mailto:svalois2000@yahoo.com
mailto:ncstman@gmail.com
mailto:gknoefel@charter.net
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


Proposed – August 20, 2018 

WEAVERVILLE PLANNING AND ZONING BOARD 
Regularly meets 1st Tuesday of the month at 6 pm 
in Council Chambers at Town Hall  
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT 

TERM            
(2 YEARS) 

Doug Theroux 
Chairman 

73 Hillcrest Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-9477; (cell) 231-3568 
dbtheroux93@gmail.com 
 

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2019 

Peter Stanz 
Regular Member 

49 Brown Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 828-768-4202 
stanzbus@gmail.com 
 

August 2017 September 
2016 – 2019 

Gary Burge 
Vice Chairman 

3 High Bluff Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 423-0150 
garyburge@garyburge.com 
 

August 2018 September 
2018 – 2020 

Catherine Cordell 
Regular Member 

13 Hamburg Drive 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 776-7380 
cat.cordell@live.com  
 

August 2018 September 
2018 – 2020 

Steve Warren 
Regular Member 

3 Duncannon Street 
Weaverville, NC 287887 
704-682-5801/704-807-9899 
warren.smw.steve@gmail.com 
 

August 2018 September 
2018 – 2020 

    
John Chase 
Alternate Member 

151 South Main Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
(cell) 828-337-3366 
jchase@medlockengr.com 
 

August 2018 September 
2018 – 2020 

 

James Eller 
Town Planner 

484-7002 
jeller@weavervillenc.org  
 

  

Jennifer Jackson 
Town Attorney 

 

828-442-1858 
jjackson@weavervillenc.org  

  

  

28

mailto:dbtheroux93@gmail.com
mailto:stanzbus@gmail.com
mailto:garyburge@garyburge.com
mailto:cat.cordell@live.com
mailto:warren.smw.steve@gmail.com
mailto:jchase@medlockengr.com
mailto:jeller@weavervillenc.org
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


Proposed –  August 20, 2018 

WEAVERVILLE 
ALCOHOL BEVERAGE CONTROL (ABC) BOARD 

Quarterly – 10 am on First Wednesday in March, June, September and December 
in Small Conference Room at Town Hall; and as needed 
 

NAME AND 
POSITION 

CONTACT INFORMATION DATE OF 
APPOINTMENT  

TERM            
(3 YEARS) 

Robert Chason 
Chairman 

1 South College Street 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
645-4191; (cell) 277-8510 
homebrew7@charter.net 
 

August 2017 September 
2017 – 2020 

Roney Hilliard 
 

85 Alexander Road 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
645-0522; (w) 776-2278  
roneyhilliard@gmail.com 
 

August 2018 September 
2018 – 2021 

Warren Alcorn 
 

22 Perrion Avenue 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
658-3510; 713-7634 
alcornwd@msn.com  
 

August 2016 September 
2016 –  2019 

 
Jennifer Jackson 
Attorney to the 
Board 

828-442-1858 
jjackson@weavervillenc.org  
 

  

 

29

mailto:homebrew7@charter.net
mailto:roneyhilliard@gmail.com
mailto:alcornwd@msn.com
mailto:jjackson@weavervillenc.org


TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: August 20, 2018 

SUBJECT: Waterline Acceptance and Authorization for Staff Level 
Approval – Bulls Bay, LLC – Central Avenue 

PRESENTER:  Public Works Director 

ATTACHMENTS: Approved Easement Plat 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Bulls Bay, LLC, is in the process of developing the property formerly known as 44 Central 
Avenue into a 7 lot subdivision previously approved by Town Council on June 19, 2017. 
The water allocation of this subdivision was likewise approved by Town Council on April 
17, 2017. The development of this subdivision included the installation of the water main 
extension that will allow all of the lots within this subdivision to be served and that water 
infrastructure has been completed and inspected and is ready to be accepted into the 
Town’s water system. A water easement plat is attached showing the lines and the 
easement area.  

The Public Works Director is requesting that Town Council accept the waterline extension 
and related improvements into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval by 
the Public Works Director, Town Manager and Town Attorney. The Public Works Director 
also urges Town Council to set an improvement defects guaranty at $1,500 to cover any 
defects that might be discovered within three years of our acceptance. The Town Attorney 
has been working with the owner to get the necessary easement documents in place 
pending Town Council approval.  

Staff will be present at tonight’s meeting to answer any questions that Council might have 
regarding this matter before any action is considered. 

ACTION REQUESTED: 

Council action to adopt a motion to (1) accept the waterline extension and related 
improvements into the Town’s water system subject to staff level approval by the Town 
Manager, Town Attorney and Public Works Director, and (2) set the improvement defects 
guaranty amount at $1,500. 

30



31



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

Date of Meeting: Monday, August 20, 2018 

Subject: Lot 55 Reems Creek Village Resubdivision 

Presenter:  Planning Director 

Attachments: Recommendation of the Planning and Zoning Board; Lot 55 
Reems Creek Village Resubdivision Application and Plat 

Description: 

On Tuesday, August 7 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed the attached preliminary 
and final plat as required by ordinance and passed along a unanimous recommendation 
that said plat be approved by Town Council. Staff and the Planning Board are requesting 
Council to consider the plat as both preliminary and final due to the infrastructure to serve 
the proposed lots having previously been constructed. 

Action Requested: 

Staff is requesting the approval of the aforementioned resubdivision and has found in 
conjunction with the Planning and Zoning Board that the proposed subdivision is in 
accordance with the ordinances of the Town. The following is a suggested motion:

 I move that we approve the preliminary and final plat of the resubdivision of 
             Lot 55 of Reems Creek Village. 

32



 

 

Town of Weaverville 
Planning and Zoning Board 

 
 

On Tuesday, August 7, 2018 the Planning and Zoning Board reviewed and unanimously recommended 
to Town Council the attached preliminary and final plat proposing a resubdivision for the property 
commonly known as lot 55 within Reems Creek Village. Staff and the Planning Board are requesting 
Council to consider the plat as both preliminary and final due to the infrastructure to serve the 
proposed lots having previously been constructed. 
 
It has been found that the proposed resubdivision would not conflict with the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan or Subdivision and Zoning Ordinances. The Planning and Zoning Board considers approval both 
reasonable and in the public interest. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 

Doug Theroux  
Chairman, Planning and Zoning Board  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



34



1
Major Subdivision Application

APPLICATION DATE: 7-23-18 OWNER NAME: Rabbit Ridge Properties LLC

SUBDIVISION NAME: Reems Creek Village PROPERTY ADDRESS: 109 Governor Thomson Terrace

PIN: 9742-96-7122-00000 DEED BOOK/PAGE: 3247/144

ORIGINAL TRACT SIZE (acres): 1.05 PROPOSED NUMBER OF LOTS: 2

SUBDIVISION TYPE: x RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL INDUSTRIAL

OWNER/AGENT NAME: Amit Dorf PHONE NUMBER: 828-319-8286
ADDRESS: 122 Dorothy Lille Lane, Weaverville NC 28787

REGISTERED SURVEYOR: Blackrock Surveying PHONE NUMBER: 828-225-4341
ADDRESS: 157 S Lexington Ave Suite C Asheville NC 28801

REGISTERED ENGINEER: PHONE NUMBER:
ADDRESS:

Which utilities will serve the proposed development?:
x PUBLIC SANITARY SEWER COMMUNITY SEWER SEPTIC TANKS ON EACH LOT
x PUBLIC WATER COMMUNITY WATER WELLS ON EACH LOT

It is the applicant’s responsibility to obtain a copy of the Town of Weaverville Subdivision Ordinance and Zoning
Ordinance and to be fully aware of the regulations detailed therein.

I certify that the above information is accurate and true and that I am the owner or a duly appointed agent of the
owner. I understand that a copy of the recorded plat must be submitted to the Zoning Department prior to the
issuance of any permits associated with this subdivision.

___________________________________________ _____ 7-23-18
SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT DATE

OFFICE USE ONLY

FEE: DATE PAID: CHECK CASH

PRELIMINARY PLAT APPROVAL DATE: FINAL PLAT APPROVAL DATE:

APPROVED WITH CONDITIONS:

MAJOR SUBDIVISION APPLICATION
Planning and Zoning Department, 30 South Main Street, P.O. Box 338, Weaverville, NC 28787

(828) 484-7002--- fax (828) 645-4776 --- jeller@weavervillenc.org

Fee: $300.00 + $25.00 per lot

35



36



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

DATE	OF	MEETING:		 	 August	20,	2018		

SUBJECT:		 Appointment	to	the	French	Broad	River	Metropolitan	Planning	
Organization	and	its	Transportation	Advisory	Committee		

PRESENTER:		 	 	 Mayor	Root		

ATTACHMENTS:		 	 No		

DESCRIPTION:		

Councilwoman	Dottie	Sherrill	is	currently	the	Town’s	representative	on	the	French	Broad	River	
Metropolitan	Planning	Organization	(MPO)	and	its	Transportation	Advisory	Committee	(TAC).	She	
has	asked	to	be	replaced	in	this	role	and	Councilman	McKenna	has	agreed	to	serve	in	that	capacity.		

	

	

	

	

COUNCIL	ACTION	REQUESTED:		

Mayor	Root	recommends	that	Council	appoint	Councilman	McKenna	as	the	Town	of	Weaverville	
representative	on	the	French	Broad	River	Metropolitan	Planning	Organization	(MPO)	and	
Transportation	Advisory	Committee	(TAC)	with	his	term	beginning	immediately.	

37



 

Town of Weaverville, North Carolina 

 

Town Manager’s Report 

Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 

 

    

 

August 2018 

 

1) Update on the Sale of Bus Garage:  We have received an upset bid for 13 Central Avenue in the 

amount of $367,550. This bid has been published and future upset bids must be received by 

August 27, 2018. I will continue to keep the Mayor and Town Council informed of additional upset 

bids. 

 

2) Elections:  Due to legislative changes, there will be changes in the early voting period this year. 

Elections will open on Wednesday, October 17 (instead of Thursday, October 18) but will still run 

through Saturday, November 3. Elections set-up should not impact meetings of Town Council in 

Council Chambers. 

 

3) ServLine Update: To date, we have had only 65 customers (2.6%) to opt out of this program and 

100 customers have opted in to the optional line protection program. 

 

4) Greenways Memorandum of Understanding:  We are currently reviewing the Buncombe 

County/Weaverville MOU and hope to have the final MOU to you at the September meeting. 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

38



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

MEETING DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

PRESENTER:  

ATTACHMENTS: 

August 20, 2018 

Appointment of Tax Collector and  
Order for Collection of FY 2018-2019 Taxes 

Town Manager 

Resolution Adopting the Order of Collection for FY 2018-2019 

DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY OF REQUEST: 

Debbie Bruce is retiring on October 1, 2018, after serving the Town of Weaverville for over 30 
years and with many of those years of service being as the Town’s Tax Collector. With her 
retirement approaching, the Town Manager recommends that Council appoint Derek 
Huninghake as the Town’s Tax Collector and, to facilitate mentorship and training, appoint 
Debbie Bruce as Deputy Tax Collector until the effective date of her retirement.  

Once appointed the Tax Collector will need to be charged with the delivery and collection of the 
tax receipts for FY 2018-2019. The following must occur for compliance with NCGS § 105-352:  

(1) Prepayments - The Tax Collector must deliver any duplicate bills printed for
prepayments received by the Tax Collector to the Finance Officer and demonstrate
to the Finance Officer’s satisfaction that all prepayments received have been
deposited. The Finance Officer confirms that this has been done.

(2) Settlement – The Tax Collector must make settlement with the Town Council for all
taxes placed in her hands for collection for the past year and provide a listing of all
taxpayers whose taxes remain unpaid. This was presented with the consent
agenda and, if not yet approved, should be considered for approval.

(3) Bond – The Town Council must approve the bond to be issued for the Tax Collector.

(4) Order of Collection – An Order of Collection must be adopted at tonight’s meeting
which will charge the Tax Collector with the collection of FY 2018-2019 taxes, plus
all outstanding delinquent taxes.

COUNCIL ACTION REQUESTED: 

Approval of the Tax Collector’s bond and approval of the Order of Collection and Charge for FY 
2018-2019. If the Board is so inclined, the following motion is suggested: 

I move: (1) that Derek Huninghake be appointed as the Town’s Tax Collector and 
that Debbie Bruce be appointed as Deputy Tax Collector until her retirement, (2) 
that the bond amount be set at $250,000 for the Tax Collector and Deputy Tax 
Collector through June 30, 2019,  and (3) that the Resolution Adopting the Order of 
Collection for FY 2018-2019 be adopted.  

39



RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE ORDER OF COLLECTION  
FOR THE 2018-2019 TAX YEAR 

 
 WHEREAS, NCGS § 105-352 requires that before the tax receipts for the 2018-2019 
tax year may be delivered to the Tax Collector for collection the following must occur: (1) 
the Tax Collector must deliver any duplicate bills printed for prepayments received by the 
Tax Collector to the Finance Director and demonstrate to the Finance Director’s satisfaction 
that all prepayments received have been deposited; (2) the Tax Collector must make 
settlement with the Town Council for all taxes placed in her hands for collection for the 
2017-2018 tax year; and (3) the Town Council must approve the bond proposed for the Tax 
Collector for collection of all taxes charged for the 2018-2019 tax year and all delinquent 
taxes; and 

 WHEREAS, for each prepayment received for the 2018-2019 taxes a duplicate bill 
has been printed and prepayments received have been deposited; and 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council has approved the settlement for the taxes 
charged to the Tax Collector for collection for the 2017-2018 tax year, including the 
delinquent taxes; and 

WHEREAS, the Weaverville Town Council has approved the bond proposed for the 
Tax Collector; 

 Now, therefore, BE IT RESOLVED that the Order of Collection attached hereto is 
hereby adopted. 

 
THIS the 20th  day of August, 2018. 
 

TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 
By:  _____________________________________________ 

Allan P. Root, Mayor 

 

ATTESTED BY: 

 
________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 
 

40



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 
       ORDER OF COLLECTION 
TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 
 

TO THE TAX COLLECTOR OF THE TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE: 

 You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes, 
including current, insolvent, and delinquent taxes, set forth in the tax records for the Town 
of Weaverville and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from 
the taxpayers likewise therein set forth. Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien 
upon all real property of the respective taxpayers in the Town of Weaverville, and this 
order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require, and enable you to levy on and 
sell any real or personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in 
accordance with law. This order is adopted pursuant to and in accordance with N.C. Gen. 
Stat. § 105-321. 

 WITNESS my hand and official seal, this 20th  day of August, 2018. 

  TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

 
 By:  ____________________________________________ 
  Allan P. Root, Mayor 
 

ATTESTED BY: 

 

________________________________________ 
Derek K. Huninghake, Town Clerk 

41



TOWN OF WEAVERVILLE 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA ITEM 

 

Date of Meeting: August 20, 2018 

Subject: Waterline Extension and  Allocation Request for Hawthorne at 
Garrison Branch (formerly Northpoint Commons)                                                     

Presenter:  Dale Pennell, Public Works Director 
 Marvin Mercer, PE  (Engineer for Developer)                          

Attachments:           Application for Commitment Letter 
   Proposed Site Plan 
    

Description: 

Hawthorne at Garrison Branch is a proposed apartment complex consisting of 9 individual 
residential buildings housing 234 dwelling units, a swimming pool, and buildings housing 
amenities such as a clubhouse and pool house. This project is proposed on property 
abutting Ollie Weaver Road and Garrison Branch Road near US 25/70 just outside of the 
Town’s municipal limits.  
 
To serve this project the developer has requested a water allocation of 66,000 gallons per 
day with peak demand of 234 gallons per minute. Approximately 1,000 linear feet of water 
main must be constructed to reach the property and the residential units will be served 
through 2-inch residential meters at each building branching off of a waterline that is a 
minimum of 6-inches in diameter within the proposed development.  
 
This request is brought to Town Council due to scope of the project and total water 
allocation requested. Town Council reviewed a similar request for a project at this site in 
December 18, 2017, but the original request was withdrawn by the applicant prior to Town 
Council action. 
 
Town staff will be available at tonight’s meeting and will present recommendations 
concerning this request.  
                                                                                                                                                                        

Action Requested:                

Council discussion and decision regarding supplying service, voluntary annexation 
conditions, and/or other issues related to this proposed multi-family project. 

 

42



43



44



S
ou

th
er

n 
C

on
cr

et
e 

M
at

er
ia

ls
 In

c.
D

.B
. 
1
4
2
4
 P

g.
 1

4
6

PI
N
 9

7
3
3
7
2
6
6
2
9
0
0

S
te

ph
en

 P
. 
Za

rn
ow

sk
i J

r.
D

.B
. 
1
6
4
0
 P

g.
 1

8
1

PI
N
 9

7
3
3
8
2
0
6
5
9
0
0

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
7
3
7
9
2
0
0
0

P.
B
.4

9
 P

g.
1
6
6

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
7
3
8
9
2
5
0
0

D
.B

. 
4

0
8

8
 P

g.
 1

7
1

1
 P

.B
.4

9
 P

g.
1

6
6

PI
N
: 

9
7

3
3

7
3

0
8

2
8

0
0

Ta
ng

i L
. 
H
an

o
D

.B
. 
4
4
4
5
 P

g.
 1

9
1
5

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
2
3
6
2
1
0
0

LA
R
R
Y 

R
. 

& 
S
U
S
A
N
 L

.
S
C

O
TT

D
.B

. 
2
0
4
4
 P

g.
 7

7
3

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
2
6
5
4
0
0
0

H
O

M
ER

 D
. 

& 
M

A
R
G

A
R
ET

 K
.

R
EV

IS
D

.B
. 
4
2
5
5
 P

g.
 1

8
5
2

P.
B
. 
1
2
7
 P

g.
 9

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
2
6
8
0
2
0
0

H
O

M
ER

 D
. 

&
M

A
R
G

A
R
ET

 K
.

R
EV

IS
D

.B
. 
4
3
7
9
 P

g.
 1

3
8
1

P.
B
. 
1
2
7
 P

g.
 9

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
3
5
0
6
2
0
0

A
N
N
 W

. 
M

A
TH

IS
D

.B
. 
4
7
3
2
 P

g.
 7

5
PI

N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
4
3
5
9
0
0
0

JO
H
N
 H

. 
& 

JA
N
 C

.
B
LA

KE
LY

D
.B

. 
2
0
3
8
 P

g.
 6

0
7

PI
N
:9

7
3
3
8
3
6
9
2
9
0
0

C
LA

U
D

E 
A
 &

 P
A
TT

Y
C

O
C

H
R
A
N

D
.B

. 
1

1
6

7
 P

g.
 1

3
9

PI
N
: 

9
7

3
3

8
3

5
6

2
5

0
0

R
O

B
ER

T 
A
LA

N
S
H
EP

PA
R
D

D
.B

. 
3
2
4
2
 P

g.
 2

7
5

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
3
5
3
4
5
0
0

H
 &

 K
 P

R
O

PE
R
TI

ES
 L

LC
D

.B
. 

4
6

0
8

 P
g.

6
6

5
P.

B
. 

1
1

7
 P

g.
1

9
9

Er
ic

 &
 C

ar
le

ne
S
uh

re
n

D
.B

. 
4
1
8
3
 P

g.
 1

8
9
5

PI
N
: 
9
7
3
3
8
2
3
7
3
5
0
0

Pa
ul

 R
. 

S
ex

to
n

D
.B

. 
2

0
0

4
 P

g.
 3

5
6

PI
N
: 

9
7

3
3

8
2

3
8

5
8

0
0

G
re

go
ry

 S
ch

ul
z 

& 
S
ha

ro
n 

B
ak

er
D

.B
. 

4
3

0
5

 P
g.

 6
0

9
P.

B
.1

0
5

 P
g.

1
9

5
PI

N
 9

7
3

3
8

3
1

0
5

4
0

0
2

.0
0

 A
cr

es

OLLI
EWEA

VE
R

RD
.

HW
Y 2

5/7
0

S.
R.
17

30

P
O

N
D

C
L
U

B
H

O
U

S
E

P
O

O
L

H
O

U
S

E

P
O

O
L

T
R

E
E

C
O

N
S

E
R

V
A

T
I
O

N

A
R

E
A

 T
YP

E
 '1

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(4

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 2
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

1

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '1

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(4

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 2
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

5

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '1

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(4

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 2
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

8

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '2

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(2

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 2
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(2

) 3
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

2

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '2

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(2

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 2
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(2

) 3
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

9

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '4

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(5

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 3
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

3

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '4

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(5

) 1
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S
(4

) 3
 B

R
 U

N
IT

S

4

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '3

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(1

0)
 2

 B
R

 U
N

IT
S

6

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

 T
YP

E
 '3

'
B

U
IL

D
IN

G
(1

0)
 2

 B
R

 U
N

IT
S

7

F
F

E
=

 
X

X
X

.
0
0

P

T

A

C

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
D

O
G

P
A

R
K

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

M
A

I
N

T
E

N
A

N
C

E

B
L

D
G

.

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

 
B

I
K

E

A
N

D
 
K

A
Y

A
K

S
T

O
R

A
G

E

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

C
O

M
M

U
N

I
T

Y

G
A

R
D

E
N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
L

A
Y

G
R

O
U

N
D

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

L
I
F

T
 
S

T
A

T
I
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
T

O
R

M
W

A
T

E
R

P
O

N
D

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

G
R

I
L

L
I
N

G

P
A

V
I
L

I
O

N

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

P
A

V
E

D
 
W

A
L

K
I
N

G

P
A

T
H

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

A
C

C
E

S
S

I
B

L
E

T
R

A
I
L

T
O

 
D

O
G

 
P

A
R

K

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

G
R

A
V

E
L

 
T

R
A

I
L

P
R

O
P

O
S

E
D

S
M

O
K

I
N

G

S
T

R
U

C
T

U
R

E

S
I
T

E
 
D

A
T

A

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

 
D

A
T

A

N
O

R
T

H
P

O
I
N

T
 
C

O
M

M
O

N
S

Aug 13, 2018 - 4:44pm

 C
-1

SITE PLAN
 

1"
=

 6
0'

V
IC

IN
IT

Y
 M

A
P

N
O

T
 T

O
 S

C
A

L
E

P
R

O
J
E

C
T

S
IT

E

S
he

et
:

D
at

e:

S
ca

le
:

R
ev

ie
w

ed
:

C
he

ck
ed

:

G
ra

ph
ic

s:

D
es

ig
ne

d:

DRAWING TITLE:

PRINT DATE BELOW

P
R

E
L

IM
IN

A
R

Y
N

O
T

 F
O

R
 C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

IO
N

PRELIM
IN

ARY

NOT F
OR C

ONSTRUCTIO
N

NO.DATE REVISIONS/SUBMISSIONS

S
he

et
 N

o.
:

O
F

P
ro

je
ct

 N
o:

M
D

G

E
N

G
I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
E

X
C

E
L

L
E

N
C

E

P
.
O

.
 
B

O
X

 
1
5
1
6

W
E

A
V

E
R

V
I
L

L
E

,
 
N

O
R

T
H

 
C

A
R

O
L

I
N

A
 
2
8
7
8
7

P
:
 
8
2
8
.
6
4
5
.
7
0
8
8

F
:
 
8
2
8
.
6
4
5
.
7
7
1
4

i
n

f
o

@
m

d
g

e
n

g
.
c
o

m

w
w

w
.
m

d
g

e
n

g
.
c
o

m

C
I
V

I
L

 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G
 
.
 
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
A

L
 
E

N
G

I
N

E
E

R
I
N

G

M
U

N
I
C

I
P

A
L

 
I
N

F
R

A
S

T
R

U
C

T
U

R
E

 
.
 
C

O
N

S
T

R
U

C
T

I
O

N
 
A

D
M

I
N

I
S

T
R

A
T

I
O

N

C
-
2
3
8
3

N
O

1
7
-1

6
8

HAWTHORNE AT GARRISON BRANCH

BUNCOMBE COUNTYWEAVERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

JH
M

M
D

G

JH
M

-J
M

M

JH
M

/J
M

M

DRAWING-NAME
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
2077.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DENSE VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DENSE VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2074.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2085.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2078.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2078.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2083.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2087.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2092.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2104.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2108.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2109.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2106.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2095.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2091.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2131.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2113.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2133.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2127.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2122.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2069.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2064.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2073.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2071.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2093.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2098.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2131.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
2129.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2121.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2125.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DENSE VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DENSE VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2087.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2132.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
 DENSE VEGETATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
2107.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2114.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2128.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2139.7

AutoCAD SHX Text
2163.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160.9

AutoCAD SHX Text
2147.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2147.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2147.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2142.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2126.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2126.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2126.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2145.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2128.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2157.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2139.6

AutoCAD SHX Text
2129.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2148.8

AutoCAD SHX Text
2156.4

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2131.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2157.2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
PILES

AutoCAD SHX Text
2129.3

AutoCAD SHX Text
2143.1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2126.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2070

AutoCAD SHX Text
2060

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2070

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2050

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2160

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2150

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2070

AutoCAD SHX Text
2060

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2070

AutoCAD SHX Text
2070

AutoCAD SHX Text
2080

AutoCAD SHX Text
2090

AutoCAD SHX Text
2100

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2110

AutoCAD SHX Text
2120

AutoCAD SHX Text
2130

AutoCAD SHX Text
2140

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
16+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
17+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
18+00

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
30' CREEK BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
20' SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6"CLEAN-OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
4"CLEAN-OUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 10' EASEMENT OR PURCHASE 3092 SQFT 0.071 AC.

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPOSED 10' EASEMENT OR PURCHASE

AutoCAD SHX Text
BOLLARDS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOTAL SITE AREA..............25.52 AC±  ZONING..............................	I-1 (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) I-1 (LIGHT INDUSTRIAL) DENSITY ALLOWED............	12 D.U. PER ACRE (306 D.U.) 12 D.U. PER ACRE (306 D.U.) DENSITY PROPOSED.........	234 D.U. (10.91 D.U./AC) 234 D.U. (10.91 D.U./AC) BUILDING AREAS (FOOTPRINTS)..XXX,XXX SF OPEN SPACE= XXX,XXX SF (X.XX AC) RECREATIONAL SPACE= XX,XXX SF (X.X AC) SETBACKS...............................	20' REAR 20' REAR 20' FRONT 10' SIDE PARKING SPACES REQUIRED: 	2.0 SP/DU=468 SPACES (INCL 10 ADA SPACES) 2.0 SP/DU=468 SPACES (INCL 10 ADA SPACES)  	        	+3 SPACES (COMMUNITY BLDG.)         	+3 SPACES (COMMUNITY BLDG.) +3 SPACES (COMMUNITY BLDG.) PARKING SPACES PROVIDED: 	460 SPACES TOTAL(10 ADA SPACES INCL.) 460 SPACES TOTAL(10 ADA SPACES INCL.) FLOOD CLASSIFICATION..............ZONE 'X' SITE AMENITIES THE FOLLOWING ITEMS HAVE BEEN NOTED ON THE SITE PLAN TO BE PROVIDED WITH THE PROJECT: PLAY GROUND W/ EQUIPMENT & BENCH TOT LOT W/ EQUIPMENT & BENCH COVERED PICNIC AREA W/ TABLE & GRILL (150 SF) OUTDOOR SITTING AREAS W/BENCHES (3 LOCATIONS) FREE STANDING GAZEBO (100 SF)	 LANDSCAPED ENTRY	+ENTRANCE SIGN +ENTRANCE SIGN   				

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT NAME:			NORTHPOINT COMMONS DEVELOPER/FINANCIALLY:		 RESPONSIBLE PARTY:    		 CONTACT:					  CONTACT NUMBER:		 	  	 PROJECT PIN:				9733-73-5347  9733-73-5347  DEED BOOK:				4187 PAGE 945 4187 PAGE 945 ENGINEER:					MERCER DESIGN GROUP. PC MERCER DESIGN GROUP. PC P.O. BOX 1516 WEAVERVILLE, NC 28787 828-645-7088

AutoCAD SHX Text
BEFORE YOU DIG!

AutoCAD SHX Text
IT'S THE LAW!

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.C. ONE-CALL CENTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
CALL 1-800-632-4949

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
180

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
J

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
027782

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

MEETING	DATE:	 August	20,	2018	 	 	

SUBJECT:	 Water	System	Capital	Improvement	Project	 	 	

PRESENTER:		 Town	Manager	and	Jessica	Martin‐Lane,	WR‐Martin	

ATTACHMENTS:	 Resolution	on	Intent	to	Apply	and	Selection	of	Authorized	Personnel	
Reimbursement	Resolution	

	 	 	 Proposal	for	USDA	Application	Engineering	Services	
	 	 	 	 	
DESCRIPTION/SUMMARY	OF	REQUEST:		

Jessica	Martin‐Lane,	WR‐Martin,	will	be	in	attendance	at	this	meeting	to	update	the	Mayor	and	
Town	Council	regarding	the	USDA	application	process,	the	progress	of	Town	staff	and	the	firm	and	
to	make	recommendations	regarding	moving	forward	with	the	USDA	application.		

In	addition,	and	essential	to	the	USDA	application	process,	Town	staff	is	asking	that	Town	Council	
approve	the	Intent	to	Apply	and	Selection	of	Authorized	Personnel	and	the	Reimbursement	
Resolution	attached	herewith.	

Finally,	as	required,	Town	staff	publicized	a	Request	for	Qualification	for	Engineering	Services	for	
the	USDA‐Funded	Water	System	Improvement	Project	as	approved	by	Town	Council	at	the	July	
meeting.	Staff	published	the	RFQ	process	on	August	7,	2018	with	an	August	15,	2018	deadline	for	
submittal	of	proposals.	Two	proposals	were	received:	1)	WithersRavenel	and	2)	Vaughn	&	Melton.	
The	Town	Manager	has	reviewed	both	proposals	and	believes	that	WithersRavenel’s	qualifications	
are	best	aligned	with	the	Town’s	project	objectives	and	therefore	recommends	that	the	Mayor	and	
Town	Council	award	the	project	to	WithersRavenel.	

	

COUNCIL	ACTION	REQUESTED:	

Adoption	of	the	reimbursement	resolution	and	the	proposal	for	USDA	application	engineering	
services	is	requested.		

	

SUGGESTED	MOTION:	

I	make	the	motion	that	Town	Council	adopt	the	attached	reimbursement	resolution	and	the	
Town	Manager’s	recommendation	and	award	the	professional	engineering	services	contract	
to	WithersRavenel	for	Phase	I	waterline	improvements	in	application	for	USDA	financing.	

	

46



RESOLUTION	BY	COUNCIL	MEMBERS	OF	THE	TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

	
WHEREAS,	 Consolidated	Farm	and	Rural	Development	Act,	as	amended,	Section	306,	Public	Law	92‐

419,	7	USC	1926,	Executive	Order	Consolidated	and	Further	Continuing	Appropriations	
Act,	2013,	Public	Law	113‐6	has	established	the	United	States	Department	of	Agriculture	
(USDA)	Water	&	Waste	Disposal	Loan	&	Grant	Program,	and	has	authorized	the	making	
of	loans	and	grants	to	aid	in	constructing,	enlarging,	extending,	or	otherwise	improving	
water	 and	waste	 facilities	providing	 essential	 services	 to	 rural	 residents,	 and	 that	 the	
USDA	 Rural	 Development	 State	 and	 Area	 Offices	 were	 delegated	 the	 authority	 to	
administer	Water	&	Waste	Disposal	Loan	&	Grants	received	from	the	USDA	program,	and	

WHEREAS,	 The	Town	of	Weaverville	has	a	need	for	and	intends	to	undertake	a	Waterline	Extension	
Project	that	includes	the	construction	of	water	main	lines	beginning	at	the	existing	water	
main	at	the	north	end	of	Clarks	Chapel	Road	and	running	along	Clarks	Chapel	Road	and	
Ollie	Weaver	Road	in	order	to	connect	with	the	existing	water	main	on	Monticello	Road,	
and	

WHEREAS,	 The	Town	of	Weaverville	has	requested	USDA	assistance	for	the	project,	

NOW	 THEREFORE	 BE	 IT	 RESOLVED,	 BY	 THE	 COUNCIL	 MEMBERS	 OF	 THE	 TOWN	 OF	
WEAVERVILLE:	

That	Town	of	Weaverville,	the	Grant	Applicant,	will	adopt	and	place	into	effect	on	or	
before	completion	of	the	project	a	schedule	of	fees	and	charges	and	other	available	funds	
which	 will	 provide	 adequate	 funds	 for	 proper	 operation,	 maintenance,	 and	
administration	of	the	project.	

That	 the	Grant	Applicant	will	provide	 for	 efficient	operation	and	maintenance	of	 the	
project	on	completion	of	construction	thereof.	

That	Selena	D.	Coffey,	Town	Manager	and	Allan	P.	Root,	Mayor,	both	known	as	the	
Authorized	Officials,	 and	 successors	 so	 titled,	 are	 hereby	 authorized	 to	 execute	 the	
application	and	contract,	with	USDA	for	a	grant	and/or	loan	to	aid	in	the	construction	of	
the	project	described	above.	

That	 the	 Authorized	 Officials,	 and	 successors	 so	 titled,	 are	 hereby	 authorized	 and	
directed	 to	 furnish	 such	 information	 as	 the	 appropriate	 State	 agency	may	 request	 in	
connection	with	such	grant	or	the	project;	to	make	the	assurances	as	contained	above;	
and	to	execute	such	other	documents	as	may	be	required	in	connection	with	the	grant	
contract.	

That	the	Grant	Applicant	has	substantially	complied	or	will	substantially	comply	with	
all	 Federal,	 State,	 and	 local	 laws,	 rules,	 regulations,	 and	 ordinances	 applicable	 to	 the	
project	and	to	Federal	and	State	grants	and	loans	pertaining	thereto.	

	

Adopted	this	the	_______of	____________,	2018	at	________,	North	Carolina.	

	
			 	 	 	 	 	 	 	

(Signature	of	Chief	Executive	Officer)	
	

			 	 __________________	 	 	 	
(Title)	 	

47



	

CERTIFICATION	BY	RECORDING	OFFICER	
	

The	undersigned	duly	qualified	and	acting	Town	Clerk	of	the	Town	of	Weaverville	does	hereby	

certify:		That	the	above/attached	resolution	is	a	true	and	correct	copy	of	the	resolution	authorizing	the	

filing	of	an	application	with	USDA,	as	regularly	adopted	at	a	legally	convened	meeting	of	the	Town	of	

Weaverville	duly	held	on	the________	day	of	_______________,	2018;		and,	further,	that	such	resolution	has	

been	fully	recorded	in	the	journal	of	proceedings	and	records	in	my	office.		IN	WITNESS	WHEREOF,	I	

have	hereunto	set	my	hand	this	________	day	of	_______________,	2018.	

	

 

 

 

 

(Signature	of	Recording	Officer)	

	

(Title	of	Recording	Officer)	

48



 

TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	
RESOLUTION	DECLARING	OFFICIAL	INTENT	TO	REIMBURSE		

EXPENDITURES	FROM	PROCEEDS	OF	BORROWING	
ON	WATERLINE	EXTENSION	PROJECT	

	
WHEREAS,	 the	Town	of	Weaverville,	Buncombe	County,	North	Carolina	plans	to	

undertake	 a	 capital	 project	 to	 increase	 the	 Town’s	 water	 distribution	 capacity	 by	
extending	the	Town’s	main	water	line	and	to	provide	for	a	looped	flow	of	water	west	of	I‐
26	(the	"Waterline	Extension	Project");	

	
WHEREAS,	 on	 July	 24,	 2018,	 the	 Weaverville	 Town	 Council	 limited	 its	

authorizations	 proceed	 to	 the	Waterline	 Extension	 Project	 and	 defined	 that	 project	 to	
include	the	construction	of	water	main	lines	beginning	at	the	existing	water	main	at	the	
north	end	of	Clarks	Chapel	Road	and	running	along	Clarks	Chapel	Road	and	Ollie	Weaver	
Road	in	order	to	connect	with	the	existing	water	main	on	Monticello	Road;	

		
WHEREAS,	the	Waterline	Extension	Project	has	been	estimated	to	cost	just	under	

$3,000,000;	
	
WHEREAS,	the	Town	of	Weaverville	expects	to	finance	the	Waterline	Extension	

Project	on	a	long‐term	basis	by	issuing	tax‐exempt	bonds	or	other	tax‐exempt	
obligations	(collectively,	the	"Bonds");	and	

WHEREAS,	because	the	Bonds	may	not	be	issued	prior	to	commencement	of	the	
Waterline	Extension	Project,	the	Issuer	must	provide	interim	financing	to	cover	costs	of	
the	Waterline	Extension	Project	incurred	prior	to	receipt	of	the	proceeds	of	the	Bonds;	
and	

WHEREAS,	the	Town	Council	deems	it	to	be	necessary,	desirable,	and	in	the	best	
interests	of	the	Town	to	advance	moneys	from	its	funds	on	hand	on	an	interim	basis	and	
to	secure	conventional	financing	to	pay	the	costs	of	the	Waterline	Extension	Project	until	
the	Bonds	are	issued.	

NOW,	THEREFORE,	BE	IT	RESOLVED	by	the	Town	Council	for	the	Town	of	
Weaverville,	North	Carolina	that;	

Section	1.	Expenditure	of	Funds.	The	Town	of	Weaverville	shall	make	
expenditures	as	needed	from	its	funds	on	hand	to	pay	the	cost	of	the	Waterline	
Extension	Project	until	proceeds	of	the	Bonds	become	available.	

Section	2.	Declaration	of	Official	Intent.	The	Town	of	Weaverville	hereby	
officially	declares	its	intent	under	Treas.	Reg.	Section	1.150‐2	to	reimburse	said	
expenditures	with	proceeds	of	the	Bonds,	the	principal	amount	of	which	is	not	expected	
to	exceed	$3,000,000	including	estimated	cost	of	issuance.	

49



 

Section	3.	Unavailability	of	Long‐Term	Funds.	No	funds	for	payments	for	the	
Waterline	Extension	Project,	from	sources	other	than	the	Bonds,	are	or	are	reasonably	
expected	to	be,	reserved,	allocated	on	a	long‐term	basis,	or	otherwise	set	aside	by	the	
Town	pursuant	to	its	budget	or	financial	policies.	

Section	4.	Public	Availability	of	Official	Intent	Resolution.	The	Resolution	shall	
be	made	available	for	public	inspection	at	the	office	of	the	Town	Finance	Officer	within	
30	days	after	its	approval	in	compliance	with	the	applicable	state	law	governing	the	
availability	of	records	of	official	acts,	and	shall	remain	available	for	public	inspection	
until	the	Bonds	are	issued.	

Section	5.	Effective	Date.	This	Resolution	shall	be	effective	upon	its	adoption	and	
approval.	

THIS	the	_____	day	of	August,	2018.	

	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	 	
ALLAN	P.	ROOT,	Mayor	
	

ATTESTED	BY:	
	
	 	 	 	 	 	 	
DEREK	K.	HUNINGHAKE,	Town	Clerk	

	

	

	

50



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success. 

Town of Weaverville Water System Improvements WR Project No. 02170809.00 

August 16, 2018 Page 1 

Town of Weaverville 
Water System Improvement Project 
Agreement for Professional Services 

A. PROJECT DESCRIPTION 
This project consists of the preparation of a Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) and 
Environmental Report (ER) in the USDA, Rural Development (AGENCY) required format to 
determine the best course of action for water system improvements to supplement the potable 
water supply to the west side of Interstate 26.  

B. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
Task 1 – Preliminary Engineering Report (PER)/Environmental Report (ER) 

CONSULTANT shall: 

 Consult with CLIENT to define and clarify CLIENT’s requirements for the Project, including 
design objectives, constraints, performance requirements, any budgetary limitations, and 
identify available data, information, and reports,.   

 Identify potential solution(s) to meet CLIENT’s Project requirements, as needed. 
 Study and evaluate the potential solution(s) to meet CLIENT’s Project requirements.  
 Visit the Site, or potential Project sites, to review existing conditions and facilities, unless 

such visits are not necessary or applicable to meeting the objectives of the Study and Report 
Phase.  

 Advise CLIENT of any need for CLIENT to obtain, furnish, or otherwise make available to 
CONSULTANT additional Project-related data and information, for CONSULTANT’s use in 
the study and evaluation of potential solution(s) to CLIENT’s Project requirements, and 
preparation of a related report. 

 After consultation with CLIENT, recommend to CLIENT the solution(s) which in 
CONSULTANT’s judgment meet CLIENT’s requirements for the PROJECT. 

 Identify, consult with, and analyze requirements of governmental authorities having 
jurisdiction to approve the portions of the PROJECT to be designed or specified by 
CONSULTANT, including but not limited to mitigating measures identified in an 
Environmental Assessment for the PROJECT. 

  Prepare a report (the “Report”) which will, as appropriate, contain schematic layouts, 
sketches, and conceptual design criteria with appropriate exhibits to indicate the agreed-to 
requirements, considerations involved, and CONSULTANT’s recommended solution(s). For 
each recommended solution CONSULTANT will provide the following, which will be 
separately itemized:  opinion of probable Construction Cost; proposed allowances for 
contingencies; the estimated total costs of design, professional, and related services to be 
provided by CONSULTANT and its Consultants; and, on the basis of information furnished 
by CLIENT, a tabulation of other items and services included within the definition of Total 
Project Costs. The Report must be concurred in by the AGENCY. 

 Preparation of Environmental Report.  CONSULTANT shall prepare an Environmental Report 
as defined at 7 CFR 1794 and RUS Bulletin 1794A-602 or other AGENCY approved format. 
The Environmental Report must be concurred in by the AGENCY [RUS B 1780-26]. 

 Advise CLIENT of any need for CLIENT to provide data or services.   

51



WithersRavenel
Our People. Your Success. 

Town of Weaverville Water System Improvements WR Project No. 02170809.00 

August 16, 2018 Page 2 

 If requested to do so by CLIENT, assist CLIENT in identifying opportunities for enhancing 
the sustainability of the PROJECT, and pursuant to CLIENT’s instructions plan for the 
inclusion of sustainable features in the design.  

 Use ASCE 38, “Standard Guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface 
Utility Data” as a means to advise the CLIENT on a recommended scope of work and 
procedure for the identification and mapping of existing utilities.  

 Develop a scope of work and survey limits for any topographic and other surveys necessary 
for design. 

 Perform or provide the following other Study and Report Phase tasks or deliverables: 
[Provide an Environmental Report as defined at 7 CFR 1970 or other AGENCY approved 
format. The Environmental Report must be concurred in by the AGENCY.]       

 CONSULTANT’s services under the Study and Report Phase will be considered complete on 
the date when CONSULTANT has delivered to CLIENT the revised Report and any other 
Study and Report Phase deliverables. 

C. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 
Services that are not included in Section B or are specifically excluded from this AGREEMENT shall 
be considered Additional Services.  The CONSULTANT will furnish or obtain from others Additional 
Services if requested in writing by the CLIENT and accepted by the CONSULTANT.  Additional 
Services shall be paid the CLIENT in accordance with the Fee & Expense Schedule outlined in Exhibit 
II. 

 Sampling/Pilot Testing 

D. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES 
During the performance of the CONSULTANT’s services under this AGREEMENT, the CLIENT will: 

 Provide any information needed to complete the PROJECT not specifically addressed in the 
Scope of Services 

 Provide all available information pertinent to the PROJECT, including any GIS information, 
reports, maps, drawings, and any other data relative to the PROJECT 

 Examine all proposals, reports, sketches, estimates and other documents presented by the 
CONSULTANT and render in writing decisions pertaining thereto within a reasonable period so 
as not to delay the services of the CONSULTANT 

 Give prompt written notice to the CONSULTANT whenever the CLIENT observes or otherwise 
becomes aware of any defect in the PROJECT 

 Pay all permit/review fees directly 
 Handle matters requiring an attorney at law 

Any changes to the alternatives or PROJECT requirements after CONSULTANT has begun work 
may require additional fees. 

E. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES 
A. Lump Sum Fee 

CONSULTANT proposes to provide the following Scope of Services previously outlined on a 
Lump Sum Fee basis as described in the table below plus reimbursable expenses and additional 

52



WithersRavenel 
Our People. Your Success. 

 

  

Town of Weaverville Water System Improvements WR Project No. 02170809.00 

August 16, 2018 Page 3 

 

 

services.  Compensation shall not exceed the total estimated compensation amount unless 
approved in writing by CLIENT. 

 

Task 
Number Task Name Lump Sum Fee 

Task 1 Preliminary Engineering Report (PER)/ 
Environmental Report (ER) $21,500 

Total $21,500 

 

1. CONSULTANT may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases 
noted herein to be consistent with services rendered, but shall not exceed the total Lump 
Sum amount unless approved in writing by the CLIENT. 

2. The Lump Sum includes compensation for CONSULTANT’s services.  Appropriate amounts 
have been incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor costs, overhead, profit, 
expenses (other than any expressly allowed Reimbursable Expenses and Additional 
Services), and Consultant charges.  

3. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for CONSULTANT’s services will be based 
upon CONSULTANT’s estimate of the percentage of the total services completed during 
the billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses or Additional Services are expressly 
allowed, CONSULTANT may also bill for any such Reimbursable Expenses or Additional 
Services incurred during the billing period. 

F. TIMELINE FOR SERVICES 
CONSULTANT will begin services immediately upon receipt of signed contract.  

53



54



 

WithersRavenel, Inc. Standard Terms & Conditions Page 1 
 Effective September 25, 2017 

E X H I B I T  I  

Standard Terms and Conditions 

WithersRavenel, Inc. 

 The proposal submitted by WithersRavenel, INC. (“CONSULTANT”) is subject to the following terms and conditions (collectively referred to as 
the “Agreement”) and, by accepting the proposal, the services, or any part thereof, the CLIENT agrees and accepts the terms and conditions outlined below:

1. Payment: 

a) The CLIENT will pay CONSULTANT for services and expenses 
in accordance with periodic invoices to CLIENT and a final 
invoice upon completion of the services. Each invoice is due 
and payable in full upon presentation to CLIENT. Invoices are 
past due after 30 days. Past due amounts are subject to 
interest at a rate of one and one-half percent per month (18% 
per annum) on the outstanding balance from the date of the 
invoice.  

b) If the CLIENT fails to make payment to the CONSULTANT 
within 45 days after the transmittal of an invoice, the 
CONSULTANT may, after giving 7 days written notice to the 
CLIENT, suspend services under this Agreement until all 
amounts due hereunder are paid in full. If an invoice remains 
unpaid after 90 days from invoice date, the CONSULTANT 
may terminate the Agreement and/or initiate legal 
proceedings to collect the fees owed, plus other reasonable 
expenses of collection including attorney’s fees.  

2. Notification of Breach or Default: The CLIENT shall provide prompt 
written notice to the CONSULTANT if CLIENT becomes aware of any 
breach, error, omission or inconsistency arising out of CONSULTANT’s 
work or any other alleged breach of contract by the CONSULTANT. The 
failure of CLIENT to provide such written notice within ten (10) days 
from the time CLIENT became aware of the fault, defect, error, omission, 
inconsistency or breach, shall constitute a waiver by CLIENT of any and 
all claims against the CONSULTANT arising out of such fault, defect, 
error, omission, inconsistency or breach. Emails shall be considered 
adequate written notice for purposes of this Agreement. 

3. Standard of Care: CONSULTANT shall perform Agreement for 
CLIENT in a professional manner, using that degree of care and skill 
ordinarily exercised by and consistent with the standards of 
professionals providing the same services in the same or a similar locality 
as the project. THERE ARE NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESSED OR 
IMPLIED, INCLUDING WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR 
FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE THAT WILL OR CAN ARISE 
OUT OF THE SERVICES PROVIDED BY CONSULTANT OR THIS 
AGREEMENT.  

4. Waiver of Consequential Damages/Limitation of Liability: CLIENT 
agrees that CONSULTANT’s aggregate liability for any and all claims that 
may be asserted by CLIENT is limited to $50,000 or to the fee paid to 
CONSULTANT under this Agreement, whichever is greater. Both 
CLIENT and CONSULTANT hereby waive any right to pursue claims for 
consequential damages against one another, including any claims for lost 
profits. 

5. Representations of CLIENT: CLIENT warrants and covenants that 
sufficient funds are available or will be available upon receipt of 
CONSULTANT’s invoice to make payment in full for the services 
rendered by CONSULTANT, and that such payments shall be made in a 
timely fashion.  

6. Ownership of Instruments of Service: All reports, plans, 
specifications, field data and notes and other documents, including all 
documents on electronic media, prepared by the CONSULTANT as 
instrument of service, shall remain the property of the CONSULTANT. 
The CONSULTANT shall retain all common law, statutory and other 
rights, including the copyright thereto. In the event of termination of this 
Agreement and upon full payment of fees owed to CONSULTANT, 

CONSULTANT shall make available to CLIENT copies of all plans and 
specifications.  

7. Change Orders: CONSULTANT will treat as a change order any 
written or oral order (including directions, instructions, interpretations or 
determinations) from CLIENT which request changes in the Agreement 
or CONSULTANT’s scope of work. CONSULTANT will give CLIENT 
written notice within ten (10) days of a Change Order of any resulting 
increase in CONSULTANT’s fees.  

8. Opinion of Cost/Cost Estimates: Since the CONSULTANT has no 
control over the cost of labor, materials, equipment of services furnished 
by others, or over methods of determining prices, or over competitive 
bidding or market conditions, any and all opinions as to costs rendered 
hereunder, including but not limited to opinions as to the costs of 
construction and materials, shall be made on the basis of its experience 
and qualifications and represent its best judgment as an experienced and 
qualified professional familiar with the construction industry; but the 
CONSULTANT cannot and does not guarantee the proposals, bids or 
actual costs and will not vary significantly from opinions of probable 
costs prepared by it. If at any time the CLIENT wishes greater assurances 
as to the amount of any costs, he shall employ an independent cost 
estimator to make such determination.  

9. Assignment and Third Parties: Nothing under this Agreement shall 
be construed to give any rights or benefits in this Agreement to anyone 
other than the CLIENT and CONSULTANT, and all duties and 
responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this Agreement will be for the 
sole and exclusive benefit of the CLIENT and the CONSULTANT and not 
for the benefit of any other party. Neither the CLIENT nor the 
CONSULTANT shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights under or 
interests in this Agreement without the written consent of the other 
which shall not be unreasonably withheld. However, nothing contained 
herein shall prevent or restrict the CONSULTANT from employing 
independent subconsultants as the CONSULTANT may deem 
appropriate to assist in the performance of services hereunder.  

10. Project Site: Should CLIENT not be owner of the project site, then 
CLIENT agrees to notify the site owner of the possibility of unavoidable 
alteration and damage to the site. CLIENT further agrees to indemnify, 
defend and hold CONSULTANT harmless against any claims by the 
CLIENT or persons having possession of the site through the Owner 
which are related to such alteration or damage.  

11. Access to Site: CLIENT is responsible for providing legal and 
unencumbered access to site, including securing all necessary site access 
agreements or easements, to the extent necessary for the 
CONSULTANT to carry out his services.  

12. Survival: All of CLIENT’s obligations and liabilities, including but not 
limited to, its indemnification obligations and limitations, and 
CONSULTANT’s rights and remedies with respect thereto, shall survive 
completion of the expiration or termination of this Agreement.  

13. Termination: Either party may terminate the Agreement with or 
without cause upon ten (10) days advance written notice, if the other 
party has not cured or taken reasonable steps to cure the breach giving 
rise to termination within the ten (10) day notice period. If CLIENT 
terminates without cause or if CONSULTANT terminates for cause, 
CLIENT will pay CONSULTANT for all costs incurred, non-cancelable 
commitments, and fees earned to the date of termination and through 
demobilization, including any cancellation charges of vendors and 
subcontractors, as well as demobilization costs. 

55



 

WithersRavenel, Inc. Standard Terms & Conditions Page 2 
 Effective September 25, 2017 

14. Severability: If any provision of this Agreement, or application 
thereof to any person or circumstance, is found to be invalid then such 
provision shall be modified if possible, to fulfill the intent of the parties 
as reflected in the original provision, the remainder of this Agreement, or 
the application of such provision to persons or circumstances other than 
those as to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby, and each 
provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforced to the fullest 
extent permitted by the law.  

15. No Waiver: No waiver by either party of any default by the other 
party in the performance of any provision of this Agreement shall 
operate as or be construed as a waiver of any future default, whether 
like or difference in character.  

16. Merger, Amendment: This Agreement constitutes the entire 
Agreement between the CONSULTANT and the CLIENT and all 
integrated negotiations, written and oral understandings between the 
parties are merged herein. This Agreement can be supplemented and/or 
amended only by a written document executed by both the 
CONSULTANT and the CLIENT 

17. Unforeseen Occurrences: If, during the performance of services 
hereunder, any unforeseen hazardous substance, material, element of 
constituent or other unforeseen conditions or occurrences are 
encountered which, affects or may affect the services, the risk involved 
in providing the service, or the recommended scope of services, 
CONSULTANT will promptly notify CLIENT thereof. Subsequent to that 
notification, CONSULTANT may: (a) if practicable, in CONSULTANT’s 
sole judgment and with approval of CLIENT, complete the original scope 
of services in accordance with the procedures originally intended in the 
Proposal; (b) Agree with CLIENT to modify the scope of services and the 
estimate of charges to include study of the previously unforeseen 
conditions or occurrences, such revision to be in writing and signed by 
the parties and incorporated herein; or (c) Terminate the services 
effective on the date of notification pursuant to the terms of the 
Agreement.  

18. Force Majeure: Should completion of any portion of the Agreement 
be delayed for causes beyond the control of or without the fault or 
negligence of CONSULTANT, including force majeure, the reasonable 
time for performance shall be extended for a period at least equal to the 
delay and the parties shall mutually agree on the terms and conditions 
upon which Agreement may be continued. Force majeure includes but is 
not restricted to acts of God, acts or failures of governmental authorities, 
acts of CLIENT’s contractors or agents, fire, floods, epidemics, riots, 
quarantine restrictions, strikes, civil insurrections, freight embargoes, and 
unusually severe weather. 

19. Safety: CONSULTANT is not responsible for site safety or 
compliance with the Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1970 
(“OSHA”). Job site safety remains the sole exclusive responsibility of 
CLIENT or CLIENT’s contractors, except with respect to 
CONSULTANT’S own employees. Likewise, CONSULTANT shall have no 
right to direct or stop the work of CLIENT’s contractors, agents or 
employees.  

20. Dispute Resolution/Arbitration: Any claim or other dispute arising 
out of or related to this Agreement shall be subject to Arbitration under 
the Federal Arbitration Act. Such claims and disputes shall first be subject 
to non-binding mediation, and if mediation is unsuccessful, shall be 
subject to Arbitration in accordance with the Construction Industry 
Arbitration Rules of the American Arbitration Association currently in 
effect. Any demand for Arbitration shall be filed in writing with the other 
party and with the American Arbitration Association.  

21. Independent Contractor: In carrying out its obligations, 
CONSULTANT shall be acting at all times as an independent contractor 
and not an employee, agent, partner or joint venturer of CLIENT. 
CONSULTANT’s work does not include any supervision or direction of 
the work of other contractors, their employees or agents, and 
CONSULTANT’s presence shall in no way create any liability on behalf 
of CONSULTANT for failure of other contractors, their employees or 
agents to properly or correctly perform their work 

22. Hazardous Substances: CLIENT agrees to advise CONSULTANT 
upon execution of this Agreement of any hazardous substances or any 
condition existing in, on or near the Project Site presenting a potential 
danger to human health, the environment or equipment. By virtue of 
entering into the Agreement or of providing services, CONSULTANT 
does not assume control of, or responsibility for, the Project Site or the 
person in charge of the Project Site or undertake responsibility for 
reporting to any federal, state or local public agencies, any conditions at 
the project site that may present a potential danger to the public, health, 
safety or environment except where required of CONSULTANT by law. 
In the event CONSULTANT encounters hazardous or toxic substances 
or contamination significantly beyond that originally represented by 
CLIENT, CONSULTANT may suspend or terminate the Agreement. 
CLIENT acknowledges that CONSULTANT has no responsibility as a 
generator, treater, storer, or disposer of hazardous or toxic substances 
found or identified at a site and CLIENT agrees to defend, indemnify, and 
hold harmless CONSULTANT, from any claim or liability, arising out of 
CONSULTANT's performance of work under the Agreement and made 
or brought against CONSULTANT for any actual or threatened 
environmental pollution or contamination except to the extent that 
CONSULTANT has negligently caused such pollution or contamination. 

23. Choice of Law: The validity, interpretation, and performance of this 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 
law of the State of North Carolina, excluding only its conflicts of laws 
principles.  

24. Construction Services: If construction administration and review 
services are requested by the CLIENT, CLIENT agrees that such 
administration, review, or interpretation of construction work or 
documents by CONSULTANT shall not relieve any contractor from 
liability in regard to its duty to comply with the engineering standards for 
the Project, and shall not give rise to a claim against a contractor’s failure 
to hold in accordance with the applicable plans, specifications or 
standards.  

25. Field Representative: If CONSULTANT provides field services or 
construction observation services, the presence of the CONSULTANT's 
field personnel will only be for the purpose of providing observation and 
field testing of specific aspects of the Project. Should a contractor be 
involved in the Project, the CONSULTANT's responsibility does not 
include the supervision or direction of the actual work of any contractor, 
its employees or agents. All contractors should be so advised. 
Contractors should also be informed that neither the presence of the 
CONSULTANT's field representative nor the observation and testing by 
the CONSULTANT shall excuse contractor in any way for defects in 
contractor's work. It is agreed that the CONSULTANT will not be 
responsible for job or site safety on the Project and that the 
CONSULTANT does not have the right to stop the work of any 
contractor.  

26. Submittals: CONSULTANT’s review of shop drawings and other 
submittals is to determine conformity with the design concept only. 
Review of shop drawings and submittals does not include means, 
methods, techniques or procedures of construction, including but not 
limited to, safety requirements. 

56



 

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

Ra
te

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

Ra
te

D
es

cr
ip

ti
on

Ra
te

P
ri

n
ci

pa
l

1
9

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
P

ri
n

ci
pa

l
1

9
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

P
ri

n
ci

pa
l

1
9

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

Se
n

io
r 

T
ec

h
n

ic
al

 C
o

n
su

lt
an

t
1

7
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

Se
n

io
r 

T
ec

h
n

ic
al

 C
o

n
su

lt
an

t
1

7
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

Se
n

io
r 

T
ec

h
n

ic
al

 C
o

n
su

lt
an

t
1

7
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

Se
n

io
r 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

1
6

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
Se

n
io

r 
M

an
ag

er
1

6
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 V

1
6

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

1
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 II

 (S
R

 P
M

)
1

3
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 IV

1
4

5
$

   
   

   
   

   

A
ss

is
ta

n
t 

P
ro

je
ct

 M
an

ag
er

1
3

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 M

an
ag

er
 I

1
2

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 II
I

1
3

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

P
ro

je
ct

 C
o

o
rd

in
at

o
r

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
P

ro
je

ct
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 II
1

3
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 II

1
2

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

Se
n

io
r 

St
af

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
1

4
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

P
ro

je
ct

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 I

1
1

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l P

ro
je

ct
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 I
1

1
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

St
af

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 IV

1
2

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
C

A
D

 II
I

1
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l S

ta
ff

 P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 II

I
1

0
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

St
af

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 II

I
1

1
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

C
A

D
 II

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
E

n
vi

ro
n

m
en

ta
l  

St
af

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 II

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

St
af

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 II

1
0

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
C

A
D

 I
6

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l S
ta

ff
 P

ro
fe

ss
io

n
al

 I
8

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
af

f P
ro

fe
ss

io
n

al
 I

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
G

IS
 S

pe
ci

al
is

t
1

1
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l T
ec

h
n

ic
ia

n
 II

8
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

Se
n

io
r 

D
es

ig
n

er
1

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

G
IS

 T
ec

h
 II

I
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

E
n

vi
ro

n
m

en
ta

l T
ec

h
n

ic
ia

n
 I

7
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

D
es

ig
n

er
 II

1
1

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
G

IS
 T

ec
h

 II
8

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

Se
n

io
r 

B
io

lo
gi

st
/W

et
la

n
d

s 
Sc

ie
n

ti
st

1
3

5
$

   
   

   
   

   

D
es

ig
n

er
 I

1
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
G

IS
 T

ec
h

 I
6

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

B
io

lo
gi

st
/W

et
la

n
d

s 
Sc

ie
n

ti
st

 II
I

1
1

5
$

   
   

   
   

   

Se
n

io
r 

C
A

D
 T

ec
h

n
ic

ia
n

1
0

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
R

em
o

te
 S

en
si

n
g 

C
re

w
 (2

 M
an

)
2

2
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

B
io

lo
gi

st
/W

et
la

n
d

s 
Sc

ie
n

ti
st

 II
1

0
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

C
A

D
 T

ec
h

n
ic

ia
n

 II
9

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

R
em

o
te

 S
en

si
n

g 
C

re
w

 (1
 M

an
)

1
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
B

io
lo

gi
st

/W
et

la
n

d
s 

Sc
ie

n
ti

st
 I

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
A

D
 T

ec
h

n
ic

ia
n

 I
8

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

Su
rv

ey
 C

re
w

 II
I (

3
 M

an
)

1
8

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
Se

n
io

r 
H

yd
ro

ge
o

lo
gi

st
1

5
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

Se
n

io
r 

La
n

d
 P

la
n

n
er

1
1

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
Su

rv
ey

 C
re

w
 II

 (2
 M

an
)

1
5

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
P

ro
je

ct
 G

eo
lo

gi
st

 II
 (S

r.
 P

ro
j. 

G
eo

lo
gi

st
)

1
3

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

La
n

d
 P

la
n

n
er

 II
1

0
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

Su
rv

ey
 C

re
w

 I 
(1

 M
an

)
1

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

P
ro

je
ct

 G
eo

lo
gi

st
 I

1
1

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

La
n

d
 P

la
n

n
er

 I
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

Su
rv

ey
 T

ec
h

 IV
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

St
af

f G
eo

lo
gi

st
 II

1
0

0
$

   
   

   
   

   

P
la

n
n

in
g 

T
ec

h
n

ic
ia

n
8

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

Su
rv

ey
 T

ec
h

 II
I

8
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
St

af
f G

eo
lo

gi
st

 I
9

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

Se
n

io
r 

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 M
an

ag
er

1
4

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
G

eo
m

at
ic

s 
Su

rv
ey

 T
ec

h
 II

6
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 M
an

ag
er

 II
1

2
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

G
eo

m
at

ic
s 

Su
rv

ey
 T

ec
h

 I
3

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

B
o

n
d

 P
ri

n
ts

 (P
er

 S
h

ee
t)

$
1

.5
0

C
o

n
st

ru
ct

io
n

 M
an

ag
er

 I
1

1
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

M
yl

ar
 P

ri
n

ts
 (P

er
 S

h
ee

t)
$

1
0

.0
0

Se
n

io
r 

R
es

id
en

t 
P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
1

0
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

O
ff

ic
e 

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
o

r 
II

I
9

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

M
ile

ag
e

P
er

 IR
S

R
es

id
en

t 
P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
 II

9
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
O

ff
ic

e 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r 

II
9

0
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

Su
b

co
n

tr
ac

to
r 

F
ee

s 
(M

ar
ku

p)
1

.1
 - 

1
.1

5

R
es

id
en

t 
P

ro
je

ct
 R

ep
re

se
n

ta
ti

ve
 I

9
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   
O

ff
ic

e 
A

d
m

in
is

tr
at

o
r 

I
8

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

E
xp

en
se

s 
/ 

R
ep

ro
d

. /
 P

er
m

it
s 

(M
ar

ku
p)

1
.1

 - 
1

.1
5

A
d

m
i n

is
tr

at
iv

e 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
II

I
7

5
$

   
   

   
   

   
   

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
II

6
5

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

A
d

m
in

is
tr

at
iv

e 
A

ss
is

ta
n

t 
I

6
0

$
   

   
   

   
   

   

EX
H

IB
IT

 II

 

Sh
ip

pi
ng

 /
 D

el
iv

er
y

U
P

S 
/ 

F
E

D
E

X
 - 

 P
ro

je
ct

 S
p

ec
if

ic
 (D

is
ta

n
ce

 &
 P

ri
o

ri
ty

)

En
gi

ne
er

in
g 

/ 
Pl

an
ni

ng
G

eo
m

at
ic

s
En

vi
ro

nm
en

ta
l /

 G
eo

lo
gy

A
dm

in
is

tr
at

iv
e

Ex
pe

ns
es

F
ee

 &
 E

xp
en

se
 S

ch
ed

u
le

Pa
ge
 1

20
18

 F
ee

 S
ch
ed

ul
e 
‐ E

ffe
ct
iv
e 
1/
1/
20

18

57



  

84 Coxe Avenue, Suite 260 | Asheville, NC 28801 
t: 828.255.0313 | f: 828.348.5354 | www.wr-martin.com  

Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington 

August 1, 2018 
 
Selena D. Coffey, MPA, ICMA-CM 
Town Manager 
Town of Weaverville 
PO Box 338 
Weaverville, NC 28787 
 
 

Water Line Extension USDA Project 
 
Dear Ms. Coffey, 
 
 I am pleased to provide a proposal for services to prepare a USDA pre-application and 
final application for the Town of Weaverville Water Line Extension Project, as well as LGC support 
and procurement support if needed. We propose with your assistance to provide the following: 
 
USDA Application Preparation 
 

• Confirm USDA Program requirements including all required federal forms, assurances and 
certifications for the pre-application and final application.  

• Represent the Town while working with program officials to qualify the project for 
consideration. 

• Assist the Town with getting registered for and setup in RD Apply. 
• Assist the Town with registration on sam.gov, the System for Award Management for 

federal funds, if needed.  
• Assist with providing information to the local USDA representative that supports the pre-

application and final application forms, and work with Town of Weaverville officials to 
gather all statistics and information required.  

• Provide the Town with documents that require Council’s action and approval.  
• Prepare the pre-application and final application for submission. 
• Provide a final copy of the application to the Town Manager. 
• Communicate with the Town and federal officials throughout the application, 

preparation and review process.   
 
NC Local Government Commission (LGC) Interim Financing Support (Optional) 
 

• Review the project scope, funding, and schedule with the Town Manager and other 
project team members. 

• Prepare a project calendar addressing the major application process milestones and 
proposed LGC meeting date. 

• Assist the Town Manager with a pre-application conference with NC Local Government 
Commission representatives. We have assumed that the conference will be achieved as 
a telephone conference and that a trip to Raleigh for the conference will not be 
necessary. 

• Assist the Town with the preparation of the requisite Town Council resolutions for the 
actions required of the Town throughout the application process. 

• Prepare and deliver to potential lending institutions a Request for Proposals, in 
accordance LGC protocols. 

• Assist the Town with addressing questions and inquiries from potential lending institutions. 

58



  

84 Coxe Avenue, Suite 260 | Asheville, NC 28801 
t: 828.255.0313 | f: 828.348.5354 | www.wr-martin.com  

Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington 

• Prepare a summary analysis of lending institutions proposals for inclusion in the LGC 
application, in an effort to determine which offers the lowest cost and best terms to the 
Town.  

• Collect the requisite information and compile the LGC application for review by the 
Town Manager. 

• Prepare and submit a letter to the Joint Legislative Committee.   
• Prepare and submit a formal application to the LGC in accordance with LGC 

requirements.  
• Assist the Town with addressing LGC questions and requests relating to the application 

and monitor the progress of the LGC review. 
 
Alice Briggs will serve as the primary point of contact and project manager and will be 
supported by the following team of individuals at WR-Martin as necessary: 

• W.T. Sorrell, who has 30 years of experience with USDA and will assist with the pre-
application and final application process, ensuring the best potential for funding.  

• Alice Briggs, Courtnay Baker and Emily Edmonds, funding application specialists. 
• Steven Miller, LGC financing specialist.   

 
Our team will work seamlessly with the Town to ensure the USDA application is submitted 
successfully and guide the Town through the LGC process.   
 
PROPOSED PROJECT FEE 
WR-Martin proposes to provide the services outlined above for a fee that would be billed on a 
time and materials basis and has been determined based on the various scopes of work for 
which the Town desires support:  
 

• USDA Application Preparation:  Not to Exceed $8,500 
• LGC Interim Financing Support Services:  Not to Exceed $6,500 (Optional) 

 
Our scope of services does not include engineering/architectural services, Phase I Environmental 
or other related technical services that may be required for the pre-application and application 
materials.  This fee does not include attending the LGC approval meeting or any required follow-
ups for addressing any outstanding, audit-related LGC unit letters.     
 
Our fee would be assessed monthly based on progress, in accordance with WR-Martin’s current 
schedule of fees and expenses.  Standard payment terms will be Net 30 days from the date the 
invoice is received in Accounts Payable. Our fee assumes that our primary points of contact for 
this effort will be the Town Manager and Finance Director/Assistant Finance Director.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions about this proposal. We hope to have the 
opportunity to work with you and your staff on this important project. 

 
 
Sincerely, 

 
 
 
 

Jessica Martin-Lane 
WR-Martin, Inc. 

 

59



  

84 Coxe Avenue, Suite 260 | Asheville, NC 28801 
t: 828.255.0313 | f: 828.348.5354 | www.wr-martin.com  

Asheville | Cary | Greensboro | Pittsboro | Raleigh | Wilmington 

Execution of this document in the space provided below acknowledges approval of the terms 
and provisions provided for herein. 
 
 
 
              
Selena D. Coffey, Town Manager     Date 
Town of Weaverville  
 
 
 
This instrument has been pre-audited in the manner required by the Local Government Budget 
and Fiscal Control Act.   
 
 
 
 
              
Pre-Audit Certification      Date 
Finance Officer 
 

60



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 August	20,	2018	 	

Subject:	 	 	 Departmental	Quarterly	Report:		Fire	Department	 	

Presenter:	 	 	 Fire	Chief	

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly	Report	

	

Description:	

Attached	please	find	the	quarterly	report.	 
 

	

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No	action	requested.	

	

61



62



63



TOWN	OF	WEAVERVILLE	

TOWN	COUNCIL	AGENDA	ITEM	

	

	

Date	of	Meeting:	 	 August	20,	2018	 	

Subject:	 	 	 Departmental	Quarterly	Report:		Police	Department	 	

Presenter:	 	 	 Police	Chief	

Attachments:	 	 	 Quarterly	Report	

	

Description:	

Attached	please	find	the	quarterly	report.	 
 

	

	

Council	Action	Requested:	

No	action	requested.	

	

64



65



66



67



68



69


	Aug 20 2018 Town Council Agenda
	July 16 2018 -Town Council Minutes
	July 24 2018 -Town Council Special Called Meeting Minutes - with jj revisions
	Tax Collector's Settlement-  FY 2017-2018
	Tax Release - August 2018
	Budget Amendment  - Reappropriations from FY18
	Road Closure Ordinances-Homecoming Parade-Art in Autumn
	Agenda Item Summary-Road Closures
	art in autumn ordinance 2018

	Board Appointments - August 2018
	Waterline Acceptance - Bulls Bay - Central Ave - August 2018
	Lot 55 Reems Creek Village Resubdivision
	Lot 55 Reems Creek Village Resubdivision.pdf
	Lot 55 Reems Creek Village Prelim and Final Plat.pdf
	Lot 55 - Reems Creek Village.pdf
	Lot 55 Subdivision App.pdf
	Major Subdivision Application Cover Page.pdf
	Plat Lot 55 1-2017.pdf


	McKenna Appt MPO
	TM Report August 2018
	Appointment of Tax Collection and Order of Collection - FY 2018-2019
	Waterline Extension and Allocation Request - Hawthorne at Garrison Branch
	Hawthorne at Garrison Branch - Proposed Site Plan.pdf
	Sheets and Views
	MASTER PLAN_60 SCALE



	Water System Capital Improvement Projects - August 2018 - Coversheet
	Resolution - Authorized Official - Weaverville v3
	Water System Capital Improvement Project - Draft Reimbursement Resolution
	Town of Weaverville USDA PER Contract
	scan0051
	Town of Weaverville USDA PER Contract
	A. Project Description
	B. Scope of Services
	Task 1 – Preliminary Engineering Report (PER)/Environmental Report (ER)
	CONSULTANT shall:


	C. Additional Services
	D. Client Responsibilities
	E. Compensation for Services
	A. Lump Sum Fee
	1. CONSULTANT may alter the distribution of compensation between individual phases noted herein to be consistent with services rendered, but shall not exceed the total Lump Sum amount unless approved in writing by the CLIENT.
	2. The Lump Sum includes compensation for CONSULTANT’s services.  Appropriate amounts have been incorporated in the Lump Sum to account for labor costs, overhead, profit, expenses (other than any expressly allowed Reimbursable Expenses and Additional ...
	3. The portion of the Lump Sum amount billed for CONSULTANT’s services will be based upon CONSULTANT’s estimate of the percentage of the total services completed during the billing period. If any Reimbursable Expenses or Additional Services are expres...


	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	A.
	F. Timeline for Services

	Signed execution page
	Exhibits I & II
	Exhibit I_Standard Terms and Conditions_eff2017-09-25
	Exhibit-II-Master-Fee-Schedule-01-01-2018


	Weaverville_Proposal for Water Plant Expansion_8.1.18 (002)
	Fire Quarterly Report
	Agenda Item Summary-Quarterly Dept Report
	FD Council Report Aug 2018

	Police Quarterly Report
	Agenda Item Summary-Quarterly Dept Report
	WPD May-Jul Quarterly Report




